
           

REGULAR MEETING & WORK SESSION
OF THE CITY COUNCIL

June 22, 2021

ADDISON TREEHOUSE

14681 MIDWAY RD. SUITE 200, ADDISON, TX 75001
6:00 PM EXECUTIVE SESSION, WORK SESSION &

REGULAR MEETING
 

Notice is hereby given that the Addison City Council will conduct its REGULARLY
SCHEDULED MEETING on Tuesday, June 22, 2021 at the Addison TreeHouse
with a quorum of the City Council physically present. Limited seating for members
of the public will be available using CDC recommended social distancing
measures. The Town will utilize telephone or videoconference public meetings to
facilitate public participation to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 by avoiding
meetings that bring people into a group setting. Telephonic or videoconferencing
capabilities will be utilized to allow individuals to address the Council. Email
comments may also be submitted to: iparker@addisontx.gov by 3:00 pm the day
of the meeting. Members of the public are entitled to participate remotely via
Toll-Free Dial-in Number: 877.853.5247; Meeting ID: 409.327.0683 Participant
ID: #. For more detailed instructions on how to participate in this meeting visit our
Agenda Page. The meeting will be live streamed on Addison's website
at: www.addisontexas.net.
           

Call Meeting to Order 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION



EXECUTIVE SESSION

Closed (Executive) Session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.072, Tex. Gov. Code,  to deliberate the purchase, exchange,
lease, or value of real property if deliberation in an open meeting would have a
detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with
a third person, pertaining to:
  

DART Interlocal Agreement – Ground Lease
 

Reconvene in to Regular Session: In accordance with Texas Government
Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will reconvene into Regular Session to
consider action, if any, on matters discussed in Executive Session.
 

WORK SESSION
 

1. Present and Discuss Non-Profit Grant Funding Presentations for
Fiscal Year 2022.

 

2. Present and Discuss the Proposed Issuance of 2021 General
Obligation Bonds and 2021 Taxable Refunding Bonds.

 

3. Present and Discuss Reauthorization of the Council Finance
Committee and Potential Appointments.     

 

REGULAR MEETING
 

Announcements and Acknowledgments Regarding Town and Council
Events and Activities
  

Proclamation Recognizing Metrocrest Chamber of Commerce
President Erin Carter

Discussion of Meetings / Events
 



Public Comment
The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any matter,
including items on the agenda, except public hearings that are included on the
agenda. Comments related to public hearings will be heard when the specific
hearing starts. Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes, unless
otherwise required by law. To address the Council, please fill out a City Council
Appearance Card and submit it to a staff member prior to the Public Comment
item on the agenda. The Council is not permitted to take any action or discuss
any item not listed on the agenda.  The Council may choose to place the item
on a future agenda.
 

Consent Agenda
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City
Council and will be enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If
individual consideration of an item is requested, it will be pulled from the
Consent Agenda and discussed separately.
 

4. Consider Action on the Minutes from the May 25, 2021 Council Work
Session and Regular Meeting.

 

5. Consider Action on the Minutes from the June 8, 2021 Council Work
Session and Regular Meeting.   

 

6. Consider Action on a Resolution Appointing John Crawford to Place 1
of the Board of Directors of the North Dallas County Water Supply
Corporation and Affirming the Appointments of Steven Glickman
and Shannon Hicks.

 

7. Consider Action on a Resolution Appointing Paul Voelker, Mayor of
the City of Richardson, as Primary Representative and Guillermo
Quintanilla, Mayor Pro-Tempore of the Town of Addison, as the
Alternate to the Aggregated Position of Representative to the
Regional Transportation Council of the North Central Texas Council
of Governments.

 

8. Consider Action on a Resolution Appointing Council Liaisons for
2021-2022.

 

Regular Items
 



9. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution Approving a
Concessionaire Agreement Between the Town of Addison and MD
Circle Cafe, LLC for Food and Beverage and/or Recreation Rental
Services at Addison Circle Park Pavilion, and Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute the Agreement.

 

10. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Granting a
Meritorious Exception to Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances for
the Addison Airport Customs and Border Protection Facility,
Located at 4545 Jimmy Doolittle Drive, in Order to Exceed the Total
Effective Area and the Maximum Allowable Logo Height for
Attached Signs. Case MR2021-006.

 

11. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution Approving an
Interlocal Agreement Between the Town of Addison and Dallas Area
Rapid Transit (DART), for the Lease of Property Owned by DART at
the Addison Transit Center for Inclusion in a Transit-Oriented
Development to be Managed by the Town; Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute the Agreement and Other Documents Including
the Lease.

 

12. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on Providing Additional
Funding for Metrocrest Services in Response to the COVID-19
Pandemic .

 

Adjourn Meeting
 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session closed
to the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss matters listed
on the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas
Government Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071 (private consultation with
the attorney for the City); §551.072 (purchase, exchange, lease or value of real
property); §551.074 (personnel or to hear complaints against personnel);
§551.076 (deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security
personnel or devices); and §551.087 (economic development negotiations).
Any decision held on such matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session
following the conclusion of the Executive Session.  

 

THE TOWN OF ADDISON IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH



THE TOWN OF ADDISON IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH
DISABILITIES.  PLEASE CALL (972) 450-7017 AT LEAST 48 HOURS IN
ADVANCE IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE.

POSTED BY:     ________________________________
                           Irma G. Parker, City Secretary
DATE POSTED: ________________________________
TIME POSTED:  ________________________________
DATE REMOVED FROM BULLETIN BOARD:  ______________________
REMOVED BY:  ________________________________
 



   
Council Meeting 1.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Department: Finance
Pillars: Optimize the Addison Brand

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present and Discuss Non-Profit Grant Funding Presentations for Fiscal Year
2022.

BACKGROUND:
At the request of Council, Non-Profit Organizations (NPOs) that submitted an
application for grant funding from the Town of Addison for Fiscal Year 2022 were
invited to make a presentation to the Council describing their organization’s
mission and what they do to serve the Addison community.
 
Below is the list of NPOs that submitted applications. This list will also serve as
the planned order for presentations. Each NPO has been allocated a maximum
of five minutes to present.
  

Addison Arbor Foundation
Addison Eagles Civil Air Patrol Squadron
Cavanaugh Flight Museum
Dallas Cat Lady
Metrocare Services
Metrocrest Services
Outcry Theatre
The Family Place
WaterTower Theatre
Woven Health Clinic

The Council will make funding decisions during the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget
process.   

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only, no action required.



   
Council Meeting 2.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Department: Finance
Pillars: Excellence in Asset Management

Excellence in Transportation Systems
Gold Standard for Financial Health

Milestones: Continue development and implementation of Long Term Financial
Plan

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present and Discuss the Proposed Issuance of 2021 General Obligation
Bonds and 2021 Taxable Refunding Bonds.

BACKGROUND:
Since 2012, Addison voters have approved several bond programs to fund
various projects throughout Town.  Once voter approval is secured, the CIty
Council is authorized to issue bonds to pay for projects.

The proposed 2021 General Obligation Bond issuance totals $16,095,000 and
consists of the following:
  

$8,000,000, from the authorized $16,000,000 ($3,000,000 issued to date),
from Proposition 1 of the 2012 Bond Election for reconstruction of Midway
Road.  Council awarded a construction contract to Tiseo Construction on
December 8th, 2020.  The project is currently under construction with an
anticipated completion date in Fiscal Year 2024.
$3,145,000, from the authorized $6,723,000 ($365,000 issued to date), from
Proposition C of the 2019 Bond Election for parks and recreation
improvements and facilities. Council approved a contract for design of locker
room, pool, and gymnasium and track improvements to the Addison Athletic
Club on June 9th, 2020.  Design is nearing completion with construction
anticipated to begin in September 2021 with an estimated construction
timeline of 12-24 months.
$4,950,000, from the authorized $7,395,000 ($140,000 issued to date), from
Proposition D of the 2019 Bond Election for improvements to existing
municipal buildings.  Council approved a contract for design of roof and
HVAC improvements to the Addison Athletic Club on June 9th, 2020. 
Design is nearing completion with construction anticipated to begin in
September 2021 with an estimated construction timeline of 12-24 months. 
Additionally, Council approved a professional services contract for
engineering and project management of phase one facility projects on April



13, 2021.  The phase one projects include roofing, HVAC, and ADA
improvements on all Town facilities except the Addison Athletic Club (i.e.,
Town Hall, Service Center, Finance Building, etc.).  It is anticipated that all
phase one projects will be completed by the end of Fiscal Year 2022.

Additionally, the Town has the opportunity to refund (i.e. refinance) the 2013
General Obligation Bonds and 2013A General Obligation Bonds which is
estimated to create $296,770, or 7.43%, in Net Present Value savings over the
remaining life of the debt.

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only, no action required.

Attachments
Presentation - 2021 General Obligation Bonds and Refunding 



Capital Improvement 
Funding Plan and 2021 

Debt Issuance and 
Refunding

June 22, 2021

1



Proposed 2021 General Obligation Bonds
 Proposition 1 (Approved By Voters in 2012) - $8,000,000 for the 

reconstruction of Midway Road
 Council approved a contract for construction on December 8th, 2020 

and construction is currently in process.
 Proposition C (Approved By Voters in 2019) - $3,145,000 for 

improvements to the Addison Athletic Club, Trail rehabilitation and 
expansion, and Les Lacs Pond improvements.
 Council awarded a design contract for Addison Athletic Club 

improvements on June 9th, 2020.
 Proposition D (Approved By Voters in 2019) - $4,950,000 for ADA 

improvements, roof replacements, police gun range air filtration 
improvements, and HVAC replacements.
 Addison Athletic Club roof and HVAC design is in process.
 A professional services contract with McKinstry Essention, LLC was 

approved on April 13, 2021 for the other facilities projects.
 Total - $16,095,000

2



2021 GO Bonds Tax Rate Impact

3

Tax Rate Impact Total 
2021 GO's Per 
Bond Election

2021 GO's 
Projected Savings (Deficit)

Proposition A 0.0353$                    -$                   -$                   -$                   
Proposition B 0.0450$                    -$                   -$                   -$                   
Proposition C 0.0100$                    0.0047$                 0.0041$                 0.0006$                 
Proposition D 0.0113$                    0.0076$                 0.0065$                 0.0011$                 
Proposition E 0.0015$                    -$                   -$                   -$                   
Totals 0.1031$                    0.0122$                 0.0106$                 0.0016$                 

Savings compared to 2019 bond election projections = 13.41%



Tax Rate Impact from Bond Committee in 2019

4



Tax Rate Impact Current Estimate

5



2021 Refunding Opportunities
Hilltop Securities, our Financial Advisor, has performed an 

analysis of our debt portfolio to determine if any refunding 
opportunities are available.
Based on that analysis, the 2013 GO Bonds (Tax-Exempt) and 

2013A GO Bonds (Alternative Minimum Tax) are candidates to 
be refunded.
 These 2013 Bonds are not callable until 2023.
Due to the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017, refunding tax-exempt 

debt that is not currently callable must be done so on a taxable 
basis.
 In addition, this fall in a separate issuance the Town would be 

able to refund the 2012 CO Bonds (tax exempt) on a tax-
exempt basis as those bonds may be called at that point. 

6



2021 Refunding Analysis

7

 Tax Rate Savings = .07 of one
Penny on the tax rate
All in True Interest Cost = 2.38%
Net Present Value Savings as a
% of Refunding = 7.43%
 Total Savings = $344,801
Net Present Value Savings
= $296,770

Date
Prior Debt 

Service
Refunded 

Debt Service Savings
9/30/2022            494,217            463,352               30,865 
9/30/2023            499,983            472,741               27,242 
9/30/2024            494,964            463,906               31,058 
9/30/2025            494,283            465,258               29,025 
9/30/2026            497,764            470,157               27,607 
9/30/2027            495,408            468,894               26,514 
9/30/2028            497,214            466,373               30,841 
9/30/2029            499,069            472,850               26,219 
9/30/2030            496,053            468,508               27,545 
9/30/2031            497,044            468,457               28,587 
9/30/2032            492,029            462,635               29,394 
9/30/2033            495,907            466,003               29,904 

Total         5,953,931         5,609,130            344,801 



Timeline
 June 22nd – Present plan to the Council
Week of July 5th– Ratings calls
 July 21st– Receive ratings
August 10th – Hold competitive sale for the bonds
August 10th – Present ordinance authorizing the sale to Council
September 14th – Receive proceeds from bond sale

8



Questions

9



   
Council Meeting 3.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Department: City Manager
Pillars: Gold Standard for Financial Health

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present and Discuss Reauthorization of the Council Finance Committee and
Potential Appointments.     

BACKGROUND:
The Finance Committee (Committee) was created by Resolution on March 10,
2015.  The stated purpose of the Committee is to assist the City Council in
fulfilling its responsibilities pertaining to the Town's finances in accordance with
the City Charter, Code of Ordinances, and applicable laws and regulations. 

Committee By-Laws require Council to annually review whether the Committee
will be continued.  If Council continues the Committee, 3 Council members shall
be appointed to the Committee.  This agenda item is to facilitate Council's
discussion on whether to continue the Committee.  If Council intends to continue
the Committee, appointments to the Committee will then be discussed.  

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff seeks direction from Council.  

Attachments
Finance Committee History and By-Laws 



Addison Finance Committee History 

The Finance Committee was officially created by Council action on March 10, 2015.  There is a 7-minute 
video available on the Town’s website showing the Council’s discussion concerning the creation of the 
Finance Committee.  You can access the video with this link:  
https://addisontx.new.swagit.com/videos/03102015-1056#26  

On August 9, 2016, the Council heard an agenda item titled the “Purpose and Function of the Finance 
Committee.” and discussed the Finance Committee’s proposed by-laws.  After discussion and 
amendment, the by-laws were adopted.   The Resolution adopting the current by-laws is included in this 
document beginning on page 2.   This Resolution details the purpose, scope, and administrative process 
of the Finance Committee.   

 

 

https://addisontx.new.swagit.com/videos/03102015-1056#26








 

 



   
Council Meeting 4.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Department: City Secretary 

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on the Minutes from the May 25, 2021 Council Work Session
and Regular Meeting.

BACKGROUND:
The minutes for the May 25, 2021 Council Work Session and Regular Meeting
have been prepared for consideration.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Minutes - May 25, 2021 



Town of Addison, Texas 
May 25, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes        Page 1 of 7 
 

D R A F T 
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE 

ADDISON CITY COUNCIL 
May 25, 2021 

 
Executive Session, Work Session & Regular Meeting 

6:00 p.m. 
 

Addison TreeHouse 
14681 Midway Rd., Addison, TX 75001 

 
The Addison City Council conducted its Regular Council Meeting on Tuesday, May 25, 2021 at 
the Addison TreeHouse with a quorum of the City Council physically present. Limited seating for 
members of the public was available using CDC recommended social distancing measures. The 
Town utilized telephone and videoconferencing to facilitate participation in the meeting. Interested 
parties were able to make public comments and address the Council via emailed comments 
submitted to the City Secretary at iparker@addisontx.gov by 3:00 pm on the meeting day. 
Members of the public were also entitled to participate remotely via Toll-Free Dial-in Number: 
877.853.5247; Meeting ID: 409.327.0683 Participant ID: #. Detailed instructions on how to 
participate in this meeting were available on the Town’s website on the Agenda Page. The meeting 
was live streamed on Addison's website at www.addisontexas.net 

 

Present:  Mayor Joe Chow; Mayor Pro Tempore Guillermo Quintanilla; Deputy Mayor Pro 
Tempore Paul Walden; Council Member Tom Braun; Council Member Lori Ward; 
Council Member Kathryn Wheeler; Council Member Marlin Willesen 

 

Call Meeting to Order: Mayor Chow called the meeting to order. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor Chow led the Pledge of Allegiance 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Closed (Executive) Session of the Addison City Council pursuant to: Section 551. 074, Tex. 
Gov. Code, to deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, 
discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee, pertaining to: 

 
• City Attorney 

 
Mayor Chow closed the Open Session to convene the City Council into Closed Executive Session 
at 6:02 p.m. 

mailto:iparker@addisontx.gov
http://www.addisontexas.net/


Town of Addison, Texas 
May 25, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes        Page 2 of 7 
 

Reconvene into Regular Session: In accordance with Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, 
the City Council will reconvene into Regular Session to consider action, if any, on matters 
discussed in Executive Session. 

 

Mayor Chow reconvened the City Council into Open Session at 7:03 p.m. No action was taken as 
a result of the Executive Session. 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and Council Events and Activities 

Discussion of Events/Meetings 

Public Comment: The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any matter, including items on 
the agenda, except public hearings that are included on the agenda. Comments related to public hearings will be 
heard when the specific hearing starts. Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes, unless otherwise required 
by law. To address the Council, please fill out a City Council Appearance Card and submit it to a staff member prior 
to the Public Comment item on the agenda. The Council is not permitted to take any action or discuss any item not 
listed on the agenda. The Council may choose to place the item on a future agenda. 

 
City Secretary Parker advised that no citizens had requested to address the City Council via 
telephonic means. 

 

Consent Agenda: All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City Council and will 
be enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is requested, it will 
be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately. 

 
1. Consider Action on the Minutes from the April 27, 2021 Council Work Session and 

Regular Meeting. 
 

2. Consider Action on the Minutes from the May 11, 2021 Regular Council Meeting. 
 

3. Consider Action on a Resolution Authorizing Acceptance of Coronavirus Response 
and Relief Supplemental Appropriation Act (CRRSAA) Airport Coronavirus 
Response Grant Program (AGRCP) Grant from the Texas Department of 
Transportation in the Estimated Amount of $57,000 and Authorize the City Manager 
to Execute the Documents Necessary to Accept the Grant. 

 

4. Consider Action on a Resolution Approving a Sale and Assignment of Ground 
Leasehold Between Concourse Plaza II, LTD. and 16051 Addison, LLC for 
Commercial Office, and Aeronautical use on Property Located at 16051 Addison 
Road Together with Consent to Leasehold Mortgage; and Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute the Consent of Landlord as Required by the Ground Lease. 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
May 25, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes        Page 3 of 7 
 

5. Consider Action on the Second Quarter Update from the Finance Committee to the 
City Council for the Period from January 2021 to March 2021.  

 
6. Consider Action on a Resolution Approving a Contract Between the Town of Addison 

and Rey-Mar Construction for the Kellway Lift Station Bypass Project and 
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract in an Amount Not to Exceed 
$777,100. 

 

Mayor Chow asked if there were any requests to remove an item from the Consent Agenda for 
separate discussion.  There were none. 

 
MOTION: Council Member Ward moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 
as submitted. Council Member Braun seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Resolution No. R21-027: Accept Airport Coronavirus Response Grant Program (ACRGP) 
Resolution No. R21-028: Consent to Proposed Sale and Assignment of 16051 Addison Road at 
Addison Airport 
Resolution No. R21-029: Contract with Rey-Mar Construction for the Kellway Lift Station 
Bypass Project 

 

 
Regular Items 

 
7. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution Approving and Adopting the 

City-Wide Trails Master Plan and Providing an Effective Date. 
 

Janna Tidwell, Director of Parks and Recreation, presented this item. She reviewed that a City- 
Wide Trails Master Plan was recommended by the previously approved Parks, Recreation & Open 
Space Plan. In February 2020 Council approved a contract with Moore Iacofano Goltsman, Inc. 
(MIG) to develop a City-Wide Trails Master Plan. On April 14, 2020 Council appointed the Trails 
Master Plan Advisory Committee members who were instrumental in the planning process.  A 
draft plan was presented to the Council on February 23, 2021. 

 
Ms. Tidwell reviewed various opportunities provided to the community to provide input on the 
draft plan. Following input from the Council, the Advisory Committee and residents, refinements 
were made to the draft and Ms. Tidwell provided an overview of those proposed changes. Ms. 
Tidwell added that this is a 20-year plan consisting of three phases. Signage will be present  at 
crossings and other areas for safety, and Ms. Tidwell added she will be working with the Public 
Works Department on the signage. 

 
Council Member Willesen inquired how residents will be kept apprised of progress in relation to 
their neighborhoods. Ms. Tidwell advised that she will be working with the Communications 
Department to keep residents updated by utilizing the Town’s Construction page on the website, 
through email, and through Homeowner Association meetings. In response to Deputy Mayor Pro 
Tempore Walden’s inquiry, Ms. Tidwell advised that pathway striping will be differentiated for 
bikes and pedestrians. 



Town of Addison, Texas 
May 25, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes        Page 4 of 7 
 

 
Mayor Chow as well as other Council Members expressed their appreciation to Ms. Tidwell, City 
Manager Pierson, and the Advisory Committee for all the effort that went into preparation of the 
document. Former Council Member Ivan Hughes was also recognized for his vision for the Plan. 
 
MOTION: Deputy Mayor Pro-Tempore Walden moved to approve. Council Member Willesen 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Resolution No. R21-030: Adoption of City-Wide Trails Master Plan 

 

8. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance 
Changing the Zoning on Property Located at 5290 Belt Line Road, Suite 112B, Which 
Property is Currently Zoned PD, Planned Development, Through Ordinance O19-22, 
by Approving a Special Use Permit for a New Restaurant. Case 1826-SUP/Jeni’s 
Splendid Ice Creams. 

 

Ken Schmidt, Director of Development Services, presented this item. He advised this proposed 
restaurant is situated within the Prestonwood Place shopping center, which is located at the 
southeast corner of Belt Line Road and Montfort Drive. This center was recently rezoned to 
Planned Development to allow for renovation of the existing buildings to attract a broader mix of 
tenants. A new tenant, Jeni’s Splendid Ice Creams, is interested in a lease space in Building C. 

 
Mr. Schmidt advised this building has recently undergone exterior renovation to update and 
modernize the façades. Jeni’s Splendid Ice Creams is proposing a small ice cream shop with a 
patio, which triggers the requirement for a new Special Use Permit (SUP). The new restaurant 
space would total 2,467 square feet, inclusive of a 572 square-foot covered outdoor patio area. The 
restaurant will seat 55 people. 

 
Mr. Schmidt advised that the parking, open space, and landscaping meets zoning requirements. He 
advised that notices were sent to adjacent property owners with no responses received. The 
Planning and Zoning Commission met on April 20, 2021 and voted to recommend approval of the 
SUP. 

 
Mr. Schmidt noted that the ordinance provided contains some incorrect language in reference to 
alcohol sales and advised that alcohol will not be sold at this location. A corrected ordinance was 
provided at the dais for Council reference and information. 

 
Sara Moore representing Jeni’s Splendid Ice Creams was present via video conference and offered 
some background on the company and its product. She advised that construction should begin next 
week, and the shop should open in approximately two and one-half months. 

 
Mayor Chow opened and closed the public hearing with no one wishing to speak. 

 
MOTION: Council Member Willesen moved to approve. Mayor Pro-Tempore Quintanilla 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
May 25, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes        Page 5 of 7 
 

Ordinance No. O21-19: Case 1826-SUP, Jeni’s Splendid Ice Creams, 5290 Belt Line Road, Suite 
112B 

 
9. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance 

Changing the Zoning on Property Addressed as 4141 Spring Valley Road and 14101 
Midway Road, Currently Zoned Residential-1 (R-1) and Planned Development (PD), 
Through Ordinance 084-092, with a Special Use Permit for a Private School, by 
Approving a Special Use Permit for Seven Portable School Buildings. Case 1827- 
SUP/Greenhill School Temporary Classrooms. 

 

Ken Schmidt, Director of Development Services presented this item. He advised that the 
anticipated campus upgrade at Greenhill School is the reconstruction of an existing science 
building. In order to complete this project, the school will need to temporarily place seven portable 
buildings; six to serve as temporary classrooms and one to house the restrooms for these 
classrooms. This triggers the requirement for a new Special Use Permit (SUP) to ensure that the 
quantity, location, appearance, and duration of use of the proposed temporary classrooms is 
compatible with surrounding site conditions. 

 
Mr. Schmidt provided a site map reflecting the location of the science building, and a floor plan 
for the proposed restroom and the temporary classrooms. It was clarified that each of the six (6) 
buildings is 1,536 square feet and will contain two (2) classrooms. Mike Wallace representing 
Greenhill School advised that there will be eighteen (18) students in each classroom. 

 
Mr. Schmidt advised that it is expected that the science building will be completed by August 
2023. He advised that the Town’s SUP ordinance requires that if temporary buildings are needed 
longer than eighteen (18) months, the matter must be reconsidered by the City Council. He advised 
that the Planning and Zoning Commission met on April 20, 2021 and voted to recommend approval 
of the SUP with the condition that unless the permit is extended by the Council, the buildings must 
be removed by January 1, 2024, or within thirty (30) days of issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy 
for the new science building. Council Member Braun commented that these temporary buildings 
are not intended to increase student population. 

 
Mr. Schmidt advised that public notices were sent to adjacent property owners and one response 
in favor was received. Council Member Braun and Council Member Willesen recused themselves 
from voting on this item due to having received the public notices at their residences. A copy of 
the Conflict-of-Interest Statements from Council Members Braun and Willesen are attached hereto 
and made a permanent record to these minutes. 

 
Mayor Chow opened and closed the public hearing with no one wishing to speak. 

 
MOTION: Council Member Ward moved to approve. Council Member Wheeler seconded the 
motion. Motion carried. 

 
Ordinance No. O21-20: Case 1827-SUP, Greenhill School for Temporary Classrooms Buildings. 

 

10. Present and Discuss the Finance Department Quarterly Financial Report of the Town 



Town of Addison, Texas 
May 25, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes        Page 6 of 7 
 

of Addison for the Fiscal Year 2021 Second Quarter Ended March 31, 2021. 
 

Steven Glickman, Chief Financial Officer, presented this item. He advised the Town of Addison's 
financial policies require the publication of a financial report sixty (60) days after the end of each 
fiscal quarter. This report covers the financial performance through the second quarter for Fiscal 
Year 2021 (January 1, 2021 - March 31, 2021). He provided a high-level look at some of the key 
financial indicators along with more detailed exhibits that demonstrated the current financial 
position for the various funds. The presentation included information for the following funds: 
General, Hotel, Economic Development, Airport, Utility, and Stormwater funds. Mr. Glickman 
reviewed the following highlights for the second quarter including: 

• General Fund revenue totaled $29.7 million, which is 76.5 percent of the fiscal year 
budget. 

• General Fund expenditures totaled $17.3 million, which is 43.8 percent of the fiscal 
year budget. 

• Sales tax collections totaled $6.9 million, which is 55.7 percent of the fiscal year 
budget. 

• Hotel Fund revenue of $797 thousand and expenditures of $1.4 million, which is 
$1.1 million less (revenue) than this time a year ago. 

• Performing Arts expenditures are at 88.8 percent due to the full payment of the 
Water Tower Theatre grant. 

• Special Events revenues totaled 4.0 percent, and expenses totaled 1.7 percent of the 
fiscal year budget due to the timing of events. 

• Airport Fund operating revenue totaled $2.8 million or 53.4 percent, and operating 
expenditures totaled $2.2 million or 42.7 percent of the fiscal year budget. 

• Utility Fund operating revenue totaled $5.2 million or 37.1 percent, and 
expenditures totaled $6.5 million or 45.8 percent of the fiscal year budget. This is 
in line with historical averages (seasonally low water usage). 

• Stormwater Fund revenue and expenditures are in line with historical averages. 

Additionally, Mr. Glickman reviewed Personnel information, Economic Indicators, and the 
Economic Development Fund. 

 
The Quarterly Investment Report for the second quarter of Fiscal Year 2021 was provided for 
informational purposes. There was a brief discussion regarding preliminary ad valorem tax reports. 

 

 
Adjourn Meeting 

 
There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Chow adjourned the meeting. 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 
 
 

Joe Chow, Mayor 
 



Town of Addison, Texas 
May 25, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes        Page 7 of 7 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Irma G. Parker, City Secretary 



   
Council Meeting 5.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Department: City Secretary 

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on the Minutes from the June 8, 2021 Council Work Session
and Regular Meeting.   

BACKGROUND:
The minutes for the June 8, 2021 Council Executive Session, Work Session and
Regular Meeting have been prepared for consideration.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Minutes - June 8, 2021 



Town of Addison, Texas 

June 8, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 8 

 

D R A F T 
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE 

ADDISON CITY COUNCIL 

June 8, 2021 

 

Executive Session, Work Session & Regular Meeting 

5:00 p.m. 

 

Addison TreeHouse 

14681 Midway Rd., Suite 200, Addison, TX 75001 

 
The Addison City Council conducted its Regular Council Meeting on Tuesday, June 8, 2021, at 

the Addison TreeHouse with a quorum of the City Council physically present. Limited seating for 

members of the public was available using CDC recommended social distancing measures. The 

Town utilized telephone and videoconferencing to facilitate participation in the meeting. Interested 

parties were able to make public comments and address the Council via emailed comments 

submitted to the City Secretary at iparker@addisontx.gov by 3:00 pm on the meeting day. 

Members of the public were also entitled to participate remotely via Toll-Free Dial-in Number: 

877.853.5247; Meeting ID: 409.327.0683 Participant ID: #. Detailed instructions on how to 

participate in this meeting were available on the Town’s website on the Agenda Page. The meeting 

was live streamed on Addison's website at www.addisontexas.net 
 

Present: Mayor Joe Chow; Mayor Pro Tempore Guillermo Quintanilla; Deputy Mayor Pro 

Tempore Paul Walden; Council Member Tom Braun; Council Member Kathryn 

Wheeler; Council Member Marlin Willesen. 
 

Call Meeting to Order: Mayor Chow called the meeting to order. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor Chow led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Closed (Executive) Session of the Addison City Council pursuant to: 

Section 551.074, Texas Government Code, to discuss or deliberate the appointment, 

employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or 

employee, pertaining to: 

 

• City Attorney 

mailto:iparker@addisontx.gov
http://www.addisontexas.net/


Town of Addison, Texas 

June 8, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 8 

 

Section 551.071, Tex. Gov. Code, Consultation with an attorney to seek legal advice 

regarding pending or contemplated litigation or settlement offer regarding: 

 

• Town of Addison, Texas v. CP Greenhill, LLC, and BBVA USA, f/k/a Compass Bank, 

Cause No. CC-20-01139-B, County Court at Law No. 2, Dallas County, Texas. (Greenhill 

Towers) 

 

Mayor Chow closed the Open Session to convene the City Council into Closed Executive Session 

at 5:04 p.m. 

 

Reconvene into Regular Session: In accordance with Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, 

the City Council will reconvene into Regular Session to consider action, if any, on matters 

discussed in Executive Session. 
 

Mayor Chow reconvened the City Council into Open Session at 8:22 pm and called for any action 

as a result of the Executive Session. 

 

MOTION: Deputy Mayor Pro-Tempore Walden moved to direct the City Manager to begin 

negotiations with the law firm which was qualified by the city council in Executive Session and to 

report the status of negotiations to Council as needed. Council Member Ward seconded the 

motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

No other action taken regarding Town of Addison, Texas v. CP Greenhill, LLC, and BBVA USA, 

f/k/a Compass Bank. 
 
 

WORK SESSION 

 
1. Present and Discuss the Future Operation of the Addison Conference Centre. 

 

Jasmine Lee, Director of Special Events, presented this item. She reviewed that the Addison 

Conference Centre was temporarily closed in March 2020 due to the Covid-19 pandemic. The 

closure was extended through Fiscal Year 2021 due to the negative impact the pandemic has had 

on the Hotel Fund revenue which supports the Conference Centre. Ms. Lee provided an overview 

of the Conference Centre facility and its usage. Prior to closing in March 2020, the facility 

operated seven days a week and had eight full-time staff. 

 

Ms. Lee provided financial details for the Conference Centre from 2014 to 2020. She advised that 

there is an average annual net loss of $441,620 per year. Ms. Lee noted that currently the facility 

is occasionally used by the Town of Addison for training or meetings, and Dallas County has held 

elections there. Upkeep of the building for Fiscal Year 2021 is budgeted at $200,977. 

 

Ms. Lee reviewed several factors for Council to consider regarding the future of the Conference 

Centre. Those included: (1) Financial sustainability of the facility; (2) Financial impact on the 



Town of Addison, Texas 

June 8, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 8 

 

Hotel Fund; (3) Coordination versus competition with local hotels; (4) Community impact on 

restaurants, businesses, residents; and (5) Alternate use options. 

 

Four (4) options were presented, along with the anticipated financial implications for Council to 

consider for the future use and operation of the Conference Centre: 

• Option 1: Resume Full-Service Operations 

• Option 2: Resume Limited-Service Operations 

• Option 3: Extend Temporary Closure 

• Option 4: Repurpose Facility 

 

City Manager Wes Pierson recommended Option 3, which would extend the temporary closure of 

the Conference Centre. He reminded the Council that per the Town’s Financial Policy, an amount 

equal to 25 percent of the operating budget, must remain as a fund balance. He advised that since 

the Town is continuing to have decreased Hotel Occupancy Tax revenues the priority should be to 

utilize Hotel Fund revenues to promote special events. Since there is sufficient private meeting 

space available at local hotels and restaurants, it would be beneficial for those businesses if the 

Town is not competing for rentals. 

 

Council Member Walden inquired about selecting Option 3 and simultaneously seek alternatives 

as in Option 4. Mr. Pierson responded that while it is an option, it should not be pursued until 

Council is clear that the Town does not want to be in the conference center business. Mayor Chow 

advised that his recommendation is to select Option 3 for another year then discuss the matter 

again. Council Member Wheeler expressed concern about the amount of money lost each year in 

operating the Conference Centre facility. Council Member Willesen expressed support for 

Option 2.  The Council concluded its discussion expressing a consensus for Option 3. 

 

2. Present and Discuss Proposed Updates to the Town of Addison Park and Recreation 

Ordinance. 
 

Janna Tidwell, Director of Parks and Recreation, presented this item. Ms. Tidwell reviewed that 

Addison’s Park ordinances do not address gatherings in public parks except for setting rental 

requirements for the Pavilion at Les Lacs Park and the Pavilion at the Addison Athletic Club 

outdoor pool. There is a provision for a special event permit for gatherings that exceed 1,500 

people. 

 

Ms. Tidwell advised that there are issues with group gatherings at urban and neighborhood parks, 

some of which are not designed to accommodate large groups. Those issues include: (1) group 

sizes have exceeded parking capacity; (2) groups have told residents the park is closed for their 

private use; (3) park grounds and amenities have been damaged; (4) demands on park staff have 

increased due to increased cleanup of trash and debris; (5) park staff are typically not on-site during 

evenings when events typically occur so clean up is not immediate.; (6) many group gatherings 

are not initiated by Addison Residents or Businesses; and (7) the current ordinance does not 

provide the Addison Police Department with a means to address issues related to gatherings in 

Addison parks. 



Town of Addison, Texas 

June 8, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 8 

 

Ms. Tidwell added that staff receives calls from residents, businesses and non-residents requesting 

to reserve a space for small gatherings, such as weddings and neighborhood parties. Many of the 

requests are for reserving park spaces other than the pavilion at Les Lacs Park. 

 

Ms. Tidwell told the Council that a proposed solution would be to implement a Park Use Permit. 

The proposed permit would address the following criteria: 

 
• Who can Apply for a Park Use Permit? Addison Residents and Businesses. 

• What is the cost of the permit? Residents - $150 Refundable Deposit; Businesses -$150 

Refundable Deposit plus $75 first 3 hours and $25/ Hour thereafter. 

• What are the hours of use? 8:00 AM - 8:00 PM. 

• What locations are appropriate for park use by groups? Urban Parks; Neighborhood Parks 

- Addison residents for neighborhood gatherings only. 

• What size group requires a permit? Groups of 20-100 would require a Park Use Permit; A 

group size greater than 100 would require a Special Event Permit. 

• What are the rules? Individual making the reservation is responsible for any damage and 

cleanup. Approval is required for the setup of portable items, music, alcohol, games, and 

food trucks. 

• What is the recourse if the rules are broken? Park Use Permit Applicant will lose their 

deposit plus charges will incur for replacement or repair of any damage to the park or park 

facilities. 

 
If a Park Use Permit was not secured for a group gathering, a citation can be issued and a fine up 

to $500 may be levied by the Municipal Court. 

 

Councilmembers spoke in favor of the Park Use Permit. A suggestion was made for the Town to 

provide signage with the issued permit to post at the permitted area. Ms. Tidwell advised staff 

will bring a proposed ordinance to Council for consideration at a future meeting. 

 
 

* * * ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS * * * 

 

Mayor Chow acknowledged Margaret Somereve, Executive Director of the Texas Coalition for 

Affordable Power (TCAP), who presented an appreciation plaque to acknowledge the Town for 

being a founding member of this organization. Electrical coalitions were authorized in 2001, to 

allow cities and other political subdivisions to purchase electricity for governmental use saving tax 

dollars. 

 

* * * RETURN TO POSTED AGENDA * * * 

 

3. Present and Discuss Council Liaison Opportunities and Appointments. 
 

Irma Parker, City Secretary, introduced this agenda item. Council Member Ward stated that she 

would like to discuss whether there is a need or desire to consolidate some of the listed 



Town of Addison, Texas 

June 8, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 8 

 

appointments, due to the time commitment involved for each council member. She advised that 

the funded organizations come to the entire Council when seeking grants and perhaps individual 

liaison appointments are not necessary for funded organizations. 

 

Council members discussed the individual organizations and the liaisons appointments. By 

consensus, the Council agreed to sunset the Outcry Theatre, Ad Hoc Committee with Farmers 

Branch, and Education liaisons. The Greater Dallas Regional Chamber and Texas Municipal 

League (TML), Dallas Area Regional Transportation (DART), Texas Municipal Retirement 

System (TMRS) are all organizations that each event it submitted to all Council Members and not 

required to specific all or any liaison. Regarding the Metrocrest Mayors Association, consensus 

was to eliminate from listing as only the Town’s Mayor is a member. Regarding the Finance 

Committee, City Manager Pierson advised that the Committee Bylaws will be reviewed before 

any recommendations can be made. A report on findings from the Finance Committee Bylaws will 

be provided at a future council meeting. Consensus of appointments is as follows: 

 
 

 
 

ORGANIZATION - Funded 

 
 

Mayor 

Chow 

 
Mayor 

Pro-Tem 
Quintanilla 

Deputy 

Mayor 

Pro-Tem 
Walden 

 
Council 

Member 
Braun 

 
Council 

Member 
Ward 

 
Council 

Member 
Wheeler 

 
Council 

Member 
Willesen 

Addison Arbor Foundation   X     

Metrocrest Chamber of Commerce 
     

X 
 

Water Tower Theatre 
   

X 
   

World Affairs Council of Dallas/Fort Worth 
    

X 
  

North Dallas Chamber  X      

North Texas Commission 
   

X 
   

Regional Transportation Council/North 

Central Texas Council of Governments 
  

X 
     

 

Formal action on liaison appointments is planned for the June 22, 2021, Council Meeting. 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and Council Events and Activities 

Discussion of Events/Meetings 

Public Comment: The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any matter, including items on 

the agenda, except public hearings that are included on the agenda. Comments related to public hearings will be 

heard when the specific hearing starts. Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes, unless otherwise required 

by law. To address the Council, please fill out a City Council Appearance Card and submit it to a staff member prior 

to the Public Comment item on the agenda. The Council is not permitted to take any action or discuss any item not 

listed on the agenda. The Council may choose to place the item on a future agenda. 

 

City Secretary Parker advised that no citizens had requested to address the City Council via 

telephonic means. 
 



Town of Addison, Texas 

June 8, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 8 

 

 

Regular Items 

 

4. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance 

Changing the Zoning on Property Located at 5100 Belt Line Road, Suite 544, 

Currently Zoned Planned Development (PD), through Ordinances 012-002 and O20- 

08, by Approving a Special Use Permit for a Restaurant with the Sale of Alcoholic 

Beverages for On-Premises Consumption Only. Case 1828-SUP - District. 
 

Ken Schmidt, Director of Development Services, presented this item. He advised this request is 

for approval of a Special Use Permit (SUP) for a restaurant with the sale of alcoholic beverages 

for on-premises consumption. This SUP meets all requirements for parking, open space, and 

landscaping. The applicant intends to retain the existing façade design with the exception of 

painting and removal of the existing patio cover. The property location was reviewed as well as 

the zoning history. Mr. Schmidt added that the interior floor space is 3,108 square feet and the 

patio area is 716 square feet. 

 

Mr. Schmidt advised that five (5) public notices were sent to nearby property owners with no 

responses were received. The Planning and Zoning Commission met in May and recommended 

approval with the condition that no terms or graphic depictions that relate to alcoholic beverages 

be on exterior signage. Mr. Schmidt added that previous adopted ordinances authorizing alcohol 

for this address will be repealed. 

 

In response to a Council question, applicant and President of the District Restaurant Group, Jon 

D’Angelica, reported that food selections will include diverse cuisine to compliment wine and the 

restaurant should be open in September. 

 

Mayor Chow opened and closed the public hearing with no one wishing to speak. 

 

MOTION: Mayor Pro Tempore Walden moved to approve. Council Member Willesen seconded 

the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Ordinance No. O21-21: Case 1828-SUP, 5100 Belt Line Road, Ste 544, District Restaurant 

Group 

5. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Granting a Meritorious 

Exception to Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances for Vitruvian West Phase II, 

Located at 3725 Vitruvian Way, in Order to Allow a 2,376.2 Square-Foot Mural on 

Portions of the East and South Facades. 
 

Ken Schmidt, Director of Development Services presented this item. He advised this is a request 

for a Meritorious Exception to the Town’s sign ordinance to complete a mural spanning two (2) 

adjacent facades of the southeastern portion of a building located at the northeast corner of Marsh 

Lane and Vitruvian Way, visible from Vitruvian Way. The proposed mural is defined as an 

attached sign by the Town’s sign ordinance. With this mural encompassing 2,376.2 square-feet in 

effective area (45 feet and 11 inches tall and 51 feet and 9 inches wide), this sign is well in excess 



Town of Addison, Texas 

June 8, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 8 

 

of the area requirements prescribed for attached signs. The applicant is pursuing a Meritorious 

Exception to the sign ordinance based on the below code provision: 

 
Town of Addison Code of Ordinances, Chapter 62 (Signs) 

Section 62-33. – Meritorious exceptions. 

(d)(3) The council may consider appeals on the basis that such regulations and/or standards 

will, by reason of exceptional circumstances or surroundings, constitute a practical difficulty 

or unnecessary hardship or on the basis that the proposed improvement although falling under 

the definition of a "sign," constitutes art that makes a positive contribution to the visual 

environment. 

 

Mr. Schmidt advised that the applicant’s mural highlights key elements of our state heritage, the 

northern mockingbird, and bluebonnets. The design builds on the bluebonnet theme that began 

with the previously approved parking garage mural for Vitruvian West Phase I and honors the 

color palette of the Vitruvian West development. 

 

The applicant provided two options, Option A which paints over the existing cementitious panels, 

and Option B which preserves the current condition of those panels. Staff believes that the 

proposed mural constitutes art that makes a positive contribution to the visual environment of the 

surrounding area, with Option A for the eastern mural façade best meeting this Meritorious 

Exception approval criteria. Staff is recommending approval of Option A. 

 

Council Member Willesen inquired how long these types of signs last. The applicant, UDR, Inc.’s 

Development Manager Rob St. John, responded that the previous mural was installed in 2018 and 

is in good condition. 

 

MOTION: Council Member Braun moved to approve. Council Member Ward seconded the 

motion. Motion carried with a vote of 6-1. Council Member Willesen voted against the motion. 

 

Ordinance No. O21-22: Meritorious Exception 2,376.2 Sq. Ft. Mural of East and South Facades 

at 3725 Vitruvian Way 

 

6. Present and Discuss an Update on Addison Kaboom Town 2021. 
 

Jasmine Lee, Director of Special Events, presented this item. She advised that the event is 

scheduled for Saturday, July 3rd from 5 pm to 10 pm at Addison Circle Park. Attendance is free 

however tickets are required. Attractions include live bands and food vendors. She noted that this 

year there will be a live jazz band near the entrance, as well as a merchandise tent. A dedicated 

VIP Area will include air-conditioned seating and restrooms inside the Addison Conference 

Centre, umbrella tables on the lawn and complementary catering. 

 

Ms. Lee advised that this year’s air show will be different. It will include a series of flyovers and 

include Cavanaugh Flight Museum Warbirds, aerobatic planes, and others. Each formation will 

fly a route that is visible from throughout Addison approximately every 10-15 minutes. The 

Freedom Flyover will begin at 7:15 pm and last until 9:15 pm. 



Town of Addison, Texas 

June 8, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 8 

 

The fireworks show will begin at approximately 9:35 pm at the Addison Airport. Music will be 

broadcast on STAR 102.1 FM. 

 

Ms. Lee advised that health and safety protocols for this festival were developed in accordance 

with CDC guidance, and have been adapted to account for recent changes as follows: 

• Reduced daily capacity to 75% of pre-pandemic levels. Scaling back up to 100% takes 

additional time and resources that are not readily available this close to the event. This also 

allows for some distancing between groups as the majority of Texas is not fully vaccinated. 

• Carnival field along Festival Way will be used for expanded seating area. 

• Hand sanitizer stations will be stationed throughout the venue and enhanced site cleaning 

will be conducted. 

• Face coverings are not required; but recommended for those who are not fully vaccinated. 

 
Mayor Chow inquired is there was sufficient off-duty law enforcement to support this event? City 

Manager Pierson responded that there will be enough. Mayor Chow recognized staff for the hard 

work put into the special events. 
 

 
Adjourn Meeting 

 

There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Chow adjourned the meeting. 

 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 

 

 
Joe Chow, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 
Irma G. Parker, City Secretary 



   
Council Meeting 6.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Department: City Secretary 

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution Appointing John Crawford to Place 1 of the
Board of Directors of the North Dallas County Water Supply Corporation
and Affirming the Appointments of Steven Glickman and Shannon Hicks.

BACKGROUND:
This item appoints Town representatives to the Board of Directors for the North
Dallas County Water Supply Corporation (NDCWSC), which furnishes and
provides sewer services to the cities of Addison and Farmers Branch. 

The NDCWSC is a Texas non-profit corporation established in 1991 with the
approval of the City Council's of both the Town of Addison and the City of
Farmers Branch. The purpose of the corporation, as set forth in Article Four of
the Articles of Incorporation, is to furnish and provide sewer services to the cities
of Addison and Farmers Branch, as well as to other towns and cities if so
approved by a concurrent resolution adopted by the governing bodies of the cities.

The NDCWSC bylaws provide that it is to be managed by a Board of Directors
consisting of six persons who each occupy a place on the Board. Three Board
Members are appointed by the Addison City Council and occupy Places 1, 2, and
3, and three  are appointed by the Farmers Branch City Council and occupy
Places 4, 5, and 6.

If approved, this resolution appoint John Crawford to Place 1 to serve a three (3)
year term to expire on June 30, 2024; and affirm the appointment, by Resolution
No. 20-038, of  Steven Glickman to Place 2 and Shannon Hicks to Place 3 to
serve a three (3) year term to expire on June 30, 2022.  In 2021 with the
re-alignment of Public Works Departmental responsibilities Deputy City Manager
John Crawford has replaced Deputy City Manager Ashley Mitchell. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - 2021 Appointments 
Resolution - 2020 Appointments 



Resolution 1991 - Establishment 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. R21-___         Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R21-____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
APPOINTING JOHN CRAWFORD TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
NORTH DALLAS COUNTY WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION; AFFIRMING 
THE APPOINTMENT OF STEVEN GLICKMAN AND SHANNON HICKS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the North Dallas County Water Supply Corporation (the “Corporation”), a 

Texas non-profit corporation, was established in 1991 with the approval of the City Council of the 
City of Farmers Branch (“Farmers Branch”), and the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas 
(“City”), Farmers Branch and the City being referred to herein together as the “Cities”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Corporation, as set forth in Article Four of its Articles of 
Incorporation (“Articles”), is to furnish and provide sewer services to the Cities, and to such other 
towns and cities as may be expressly approved by concurrent resolution adopted by the governing 
bodies of the Cities; and 
 

WHEREAS, Article Eight of the Articles, and Article II, Section of the Corporation’s 
Bylaws (“Bylaws”), provide that the Corporation is managed by a Board of Directors (“Board”) 
consisting of six (6) persons who each occupy a place on the Board (“Place”), three (3) of whom 
are appointed by the City Council of the City and occupy Places 1, 2 and 3, and three (3) of whom 
are appointed by the Farmers Branch City Council and occupy Places 4, 5 and 6;and 
 

WHEREAS, the Articles names the members of the initial Board and provide that each of 
them held office for the term for which they were appointed and until a successor shall have been 
appointed and qualified, unless sooner removed or resigned, and the Bylaws provide that thereafter 
each successor member of the Board shall be appointed and shall serve for three (3) years or until 
his successor is appointed; and 
 

WHEREAS, each of the Articles and the Bylaws provide that any Director may be 
removed from office by the appointing authority at will. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1. Appointment of Directors. 
 
John Crawford, Deputy City Manager, is hereby appointed to Place 1 on the Board to serve a three 
(3) year term to expire on June 30, 2024, as set forth in and in accordance with the Bylaws or until 
such time as their respective successor is appointed and qualified, unless sooner removed or 
resign. 
 
The appointments, by Resolution No. R20-038, of Steven Glickman to Place 2 on the Board and 
Shannon Hicks to Place 3 on the Board to serve the remainder of the 3-year term to expire on June 
30, 2022, are hereby affirmed.   



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. R21-___         Page 2 of 2 
 

Further, said appointees John Crawford, Steven Glickman and Shannon Hicks may be removed 
as a Director by the City Council at will. 
 

SECTION 2. Incorporation of Recitals; Effective Date. The above and foregoing recitals 
are incorporated herein and made a part of this Resolution for all purposes. This Resolution shall 
take effect upon its passage and approval. 
 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, on this the 22nd day of JUNE 2021. 
 
      TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 
 
             
      Joe Chow, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Irma G. Parker, City Secretary  City Attorney 



RESOLUTION NO. R20- 038

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON,

TEXAS REMOVING OLIVIA RILEY AND LISA PYLES AND APPOINTING

STEVEN GLICKMAN AND SHANNON HICKS TO THE BOARD OF

DIRECTORS OF THE NORTH DALLAS COUNTY WATER SUPPLY

CORPORATION; AFFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF ASHLEY MITCHELL

AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the North Dallas County Water Supply Corporation ( the " Corporation"), a 

Texas non-profit corporation, was established in 1991 with the approval of the City Council of the 
City of Farmers Branch (" Farmers Branch") and the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas 

CitV") ( Farmers Branch and the City being referred to herein together as the " Cities"); and

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Corporation, as set forth in Article Four of its Articles of

Incorporation (" Articles"), is to furnish and provide sewer services to the Cities, and to such other

towns and cities as may be expressly approved by concurrent resolution adopted by the governing
bodies of the Cities; and

WHEREAS, Article Eight of the Articles, and Article II, Section of the Corporation' s

Bylaws (" Bylaws"), provide that the Corporation is managed by a Board of Directors (" Board")

consisting of six ( 6) persons who each occupy a place on the Board (" Place"), three ( 3) of whom

are appointed by the City Council of the City and occupy Places 1, 2 and 3, and three ( 3) of whom 
are appointed by the Farmers Branch City Council and occupy Places 4, 5 and 6; and

WHEREAS, the Articles names the members of the initial Board and provide that each of

them held office for the term for which they were appointed and until a successor shall have been
appointed and qualified, unless sooner removed or resigned, and the Bylaws provide that thereafter

each successor member of the Board shall be appointed and shall serve for three ( 3) years or

until his successor is appointed; and

WHEREAS, each of the Articles and the Bylaws provide that any Director may be

removed from office by the appointing authority at will.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF

ADDISON, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. Removal, Appointment of Directors.

Olivia Riley is hereby removed from the Board of Directors of the North Dallas County Water 
Supply Corporation, Place 2 and Steven Glickman, Chief Financial Officer, is appointed to serve
the remainder of the term to expire on June 30, 2022, as set forth in and in accordance with the

Bylaws or until such time as their respective successor is appointed and qualified, unless they are
sooner removed or resign.

Lisa Pyles is hereby removed from the Board of Directors of the North Dallas County Water 
Supply Corporation, Place 3 and Shannon Hicks, Director of Public Works and Engineering

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. R20- 038 Page 1 of 2



Services, is appointed to serve the remainder of the term to expire on June 30, 2022, as set forth

in and in accordance with the Bylaws or until such time as their respective successor is appointed 

and qualified, unless they are sooner removed or resign.

The appointment, by Resolution No. R17-55, of Ashley Mitchell to Place 1 on the Board to serve 
a three ( 3) year term to expire on June 30, 2021, is hereby affirmed.

Further, each of Ashley Mitchell, Steven Glickman and Shannon Hicks may be removed as a
Director by the City Council at will.

SECTION 2. Incorporation of Recitals; Effective Date. The above and foregoing recitals are
incorporated herein and made a part of this Resolution for all purposes. This Resolution shall take

effect upon its passage and approval.

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas, on
this the 121' day of MAI' 2020.

ATTEST:

Irma Parker, City Secretary

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. R20- 038

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

J ow, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney

Page 2 of 2



M- 33 • M • 

ADDISON RESOLUTION NO. 91- 034

FARMERS BRANCH RESOLUTION NO. 91- 052

A RESOLUTION ADOPTED CONCURRENTLY
BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF

ADDISON AND BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF

THE CITY OF FARMERS BRANCH

AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF THE

NORTH DALLAS COUNTY WATER SUPPLY

CORPORATION FOR LIMITED PURPOSES; 

AND CONTAINING OTHER PROVISIONS

RELATING TO THE SUBJECT. 

WHEREAS, Article 1434a, Texas Revised Civil Statutes Annotated, as amended ( the " Act"), 

authorizes the creation of water supply corporations for the purpose of financing
and furnishing sewer services to towns and cities; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison ("Addison") and the City of Farmers Branch (" Farmers

Branch") each have a serious need to provide sewer interceptor services to serve

their respective sewer systems and have jointly concluded and agreed that the
most efficient and least costly method of financing and providing such services
is through an instrumentality ( the " Corporation") created under the Act to provide

the same on a joint basis; and

WHEREAS, The Corporation will be incorporated, organized, and operated as a nonprofit

corporation pursuant to the provisions of the Act with powers strictly limited to

the providing of such services and the financing thereof; and

WHEREAS, after incorporation, the Corporation, Addison, and Farmers Branch intend to

negotiate and enter into acceptable contracts for sewer interceptor services

pursuant to the authority granted to cities and towns under Section 402. 014, Local
Government Code, and the Act, with payments thereunder to be pledged to the

payment of Bonds issued by the Corporation for such purposes upon terms
approved by Addison and Farmers Branch; 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF

ADDISON, TEXAS: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

FARMERS BRANCH, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That the incorporation of the Corporation is hereby authorized and

approved as a water supply corporation under the provisions of the Act. 

Section 2. That the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, in the form

attached hereto, are hereby approved and the incorporators are authorized to file
the same with the Secretary of State as provided by the Act. 

Section 3. That the Bylaws of the Corporation, in the form attached hereto, are

hereby approved, and the same shall be adopted by the board of directors of the
Corporation prior to the commencement of its business. 

Section 4. That Addison hereby appoints the persons named in Article Eight of
the Articles of Incorporation in Place 1, Place 2, and Place 3, as initial members

of the board of directors of the Corporation. 

Section 5. That Farmers Branch hereby appoints the persons named in Article
Eight of the Articles of Incorporation in Place 4, Place 5, and Place 6, as initial

members of the board of directors of the Corporation. 

Section 6. That, upon dissolution of the Corporation, Addison and Farmers

Branch hereby agree to and shall accept title to any and all real, person, or

interests as shall be specified in a separate interlocal agreement to be prepared

and submitted to and approved and accepted by Addison and Farmers Branch. 

PASSED AND, APPROVED by the Town Council of Addison, Texas on this 26th day of
March, 1991. 

LjyoUr, Town of Addison

ATTEST: 

City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

own Attorney



PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Farmers Branch, Texas, on this
18 h day of March, 1991. 

ATTEST: 

Mayor, City of Farmers Branch

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

L

City Attorney



ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF

NORTH DALLAS COUNTY WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED natural persons, not less than three in number, each of whom is at
least 18 years of age, and each of whom is a citizen of the State of Texas, acting as

incorporators of a public instrumentality and non- profit water supply corporation ( the

Corporation") under Article 1434a, Texas Revised Civil Statutes Annotated, as amended ( the
Act"), with the approval of the Town Council of the Town of Addison, Texas, and of the City

Council of the City of Farmers Branch, Texas ( collectively, the " Cities"), do hereby adopt the

following Articles of Incorporation for the Corporation: 

ARTICLE ONE

The name of the corporation is " North Dallas County Water Supply Corporation." 

ARTICLE TWO

The Corporation is a non-profit water supply corporation under the Act. 

ARTICLE THREE

The period of duration of the Corporation is perpetual. 

ARTICLE FOUR

a) The purpose of the Corporation is to furnish and provide sewer services to the

Cities, and to such other towns and cities as may be expressly approved by
concurrent resolution adopted by the governing bodies of the Cities. 

b) In the fulfillment of its corporate purpose, the Corporation shall have the power
to provide financing to pay the costs of projects, through the issuance of bonds, 
notes, and other forms of debt instruments, and to acquire, maintain, and lease

or sell property, and interests therein, all to be done and accomplished on behalf



of the Cities and for their benefit and to accomplish their public purposes as their

duly constituted authority and public instrumentality pursuant to the Act and
under, and within the meaning of, the applicable regulations of the United States
Treasury Department and the rulings of the Internal Revenue Service of the
United States prescribed and promulgated under and pursuant to the Internal

Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

c) In the fulfillment of its corporate purpose, the Corporation shall have and may
exercise the powers described in paragraph ( b) of this Article, together with all

of the other powers granted to corporations that are incorporated under the Act, 

and, to the extent not in conflict with the Act, the Corporation shall additionally

have and may exercise all of the rights, powers, privileges, authorities, and

functions granted to non- profit corporations under the Texas Non -Profit

Corporation Act, Article 1396- 101, et seq., Texas Revised Civil Statutes

Annotated, as amended. 

d) The Corporation is not a political subdivision or a political corporation, and the

Corporation has not been delegated, does not have, and shall not exercise any of
the powers of sovereignty of the Cities. 

e) No agreements, bonds, notes, or other debt instruments or other obligations, 

contract, or agreements of the Corporation are or shall ever be deemed to be or

constitute the agreements, bonds, notes, or other debt instruments or other

obligations, or the lending of credit, or a grant of the public money or things of
value, of, belonging to, or by the Cities or any other political corporation, 
subdivision or agency of the State of Texas, or a pledge of the faith and credit of
any of them, except only to the extent that the same may be payable from
revenues pledged by the Cities to pay the same under separate contracts and
agreements executed by the Cities and the Corporation. Any and all of such
agreements, bonds, notes, and other debt instruments and other obligations, 

contracts and agreements of the Corporation shall be payable solely and
exclusively from the revenues and funds received by the Corporation from
contracts and agreements with the Cities and from such other sources as may be
otherwise lawfully available and belonging to the Corporation from time to time. 

ARTICLE FIVE

The Texas Non -Profit Corporation Act, cited in Article Four of these Articles, shall apply to the
Corporation to the extent not in conflict with the Act. As permitted thereby the Corporation has
no members and is a non -stock corporation. Accordingly, Sections S and 9A of the Act shall
not apply to the Corporation. 

2



ARTICLE SIX

These Articles of Incorporation may be amended in either one of the methods prescribed in this
Article. 

a) The governing bodies of the Cities may, by concurrent resolution, order the board
of directors to amend these Articles of Incorporation. If so directed, the board

of directors shall file amendments conforming to such directions with the
Secretary of State. 

b) The board of directors of the Corporation may file a written application with each
of the governing bodies of the Cities requesting approval of proposed amendments
to these Articles of Incorporation, specifying in such application the proposed
amendments. If the governing bodies of the Cities, by concurrent resolution, find
and determine that it is advisable that the proposed amendments be made, 

authorize the same to be made, and approve the form of the proposed

amendments, the board of directors of the Corporation may proceed to amend
these Articles of Incorporation. 

c) The board of directors of the Corporation shall not have any power to amend
these Articles of Incorporation except in accordance with the procedures

established in this Article. 

ARTICLE SEVEN

The street address of the initial registered office of the Corporation is City Hall Plaza, Farmers
Branch, Texas 75234, and the name of its initial registered agent at such address is Richard L. 

Escalante. 

ARTICLE EIGHT

The affairs of , the Corporation shall be managed by a board of directors consisting of six
persons, each of whom will occupy a Place on the board of directors. Three of such persons

shall be appointed by the governing body of the Town of Addison and shall occupy, 
respectively, Place 1, Place 2, and Place 3. Three of such persons shall be appointed by the

governing body of the City of Farmers Branch and shall occupy, respectively, Place 4, Place
5, and Place 6. The number of directors and the terms of office of the directors may be changed

by amendments to the bylaws of the Corporation in the manner herein provided. The names and

street addresses of the persons who are to serve as the initial directors and the dates of expiration

of their initial terms as directors, are as follows: 



DATE OF

EXPIRATION

OF

PLAC NAMES ADDRESSES TERM

1 Ron Whitehead Town Hall, Addison, Texas January 1, 1994

2 Randy Moravec Town Hall, Addison, Texas January 1, 1994

3 John Baumgartner Town Hall, Addison, Texas January 1, 1994

4 Richard Escalante City Hall, 
Farmers Branch, Texas January 1, 1994

5 Doug Vanderslice City Hall, 
Farmers Branch, Texas January 1, 1994

6 John Burke City Hall, 
Farmers Branch, Texas January 1, 1994

Each director shall hold office for the term for which the director is appointed and until a

successor shall have been appointed and qualified unless sooner removed or resigned. Each

director, including the initial directors, shall be eligible for reappointment. Directors are

removable by the governing body of the Town or City appointing them at will and must be
appointed for a term not in excess of six years. The directors shall serve as such without

compensation except that they shall be reimbursed for their actual expenses incurred in the
performance of their duties as directors. Any vacancy occurring on the board of directors
through death, resignation, or otherwise shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired term
and to the vacant Place by the governing body of the Town or City making the original
appointment. Section 3( b) of the Act shall not be applicable to the Corporation. 

ARTICLE NINE

The name and street address of each incorporator are: 

Name Address

Ron Whitehead Town Hall, Addison, Texas 75001

Richard Escalante City Hall, Farmers Branch, Texas 75234

Doug Vanderslice City Hall, Farmers Branch, Texas 75234

4



ARTICLE TEN

a) The initial bylaws of the Corporation shall be in the form and substance approved

by the governing bodies of the Cities in their resolution approving these Articles
of Incorporation. Such bylaws shall be adopted by the Corporation' s board of
directors and shall, together with these Articles of Incorporation, govern the

internal affairs of the Corporation until and unless amended in accordance with

this Article. 

b) Neither the initial bylaws nor any subsequently effective bylaws of the
Corporation may be amended without the consent and approval of the governing
body of each of the Cities. The board of directors of the Corporation shall make

application to the governing bodies of the Cities for the approval of any proposed
amendments, but the same shall not become effective until or unless the same

shall be approved by concurrent resolution adopted by the governing body of each
of the Cities. 

ARTICLE ELEVEN

The Cities may, in their sole discretion, and at any time, by concurrent resolution, alter or
change the structure, organization, programs or activities of the Corporation, and they may, by
concurrent resolution, direct the board of directors to terminate or dissolve the Corporation, 

subject to the limitation that no such action shall be taken in any manner or at any time that

would impair any contract or right theretofore executed or granted by the Corporation. If such

directions are received, the board of directors shall dissolve the Corporation in the manner

permitted by law. 

ARTICLE TWELVE

a) No dividends shall ever be paid by the Corporation and no part of its net earnings
remaining after payment of its expenses and other obligations shall be distributed
to or inure to the benefit of its directors or officers, or any individual, private
firm, or private corporation or association, except in reasonable amounts for

services rendered. If the board of directors shall determine that sufficient

provision has been made for the full payment of the expenses, bonds, notes, and

other obligations of the Corporation, any net earnings thereafter accruing shall be
paid to the Cities in the proportions stated in the interlocal agreement described

in the Resolution referred to in Article Thirteen of these Articles. 

b) If the Corporation ever should be dissolved when it has, or is entitled to, any
interest in any funds or property of any kind, real, personal or mixed, such funds

5



or property rights thereto shall not be transferred to private ownership, but shall
be transferred and delivered to the Cities, after satisfaction or provision for
satisfaction of all debts and claims, in the proportions stated in the interlocal

agreement described in the Resolution referred to in Article Thirteen of these

Articles. 

c) No part of the Corporation' s activities shall consist of the carrying on of

propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation
shall not participate in any political campaign of or in opposition to any candidate
for public office. 

ARTICLE THIRTEEN

The Cities have specifically authorized the Corporation by concurrent resolution to act on their
behalf to further the public purposes stated in said Resolution and in these Articles of

Incorporation, and the Cities have by said Resolution approved these Articles of Incorporation. 
A copy of said Resolution is on file among the permanent public records of each of the Cities
and the Corporation. 

Ron Whitehead

INCORPORATORS

rl



THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF DALLAS

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public of the State of Texas, do hereby certify that on this ' 2 , 2
day of 1991, personally appeared before me Ron Whitehead, Richard

Escalante, And Doug Vanderslice, who, each being by me first duly sworn, severally declared
that they are the persons who signed the foregoing document as incorporators, and that the
statements therein contained are true and correct. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal the date and year above
written. 

N Public in and for the

RUTH AW PApMW State of Texas

w ptkk itw W Tex'w
Wy

My Commission Expires:

NmOWY
SEAL] 

7



BYLAWS OF

NORTH DALLAS COUNTY WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION

ARTICLE I

PURPOSE AND POWERS

Section 1. PuWsg. The Corporation is incorporated for the purposes set forth in Article Four
of its Articles of Incorporation, the same to be accomplished on behalf of the Town
of Addison, Texas (" Addison"), and the City of Farmers Branch, Texas (" Farmers

Branch"), ( collectively, the " Cities") as their duly constituted authority and

instrumentality in accordance with Article 1434a, Texas Revised Civil Statutes
Annotated, as amended, ( the " Act"), and other applicable laws. 

Section 2. Powers. 

a) In the fulfillment of its corporate purpose, the Corporation shall have all of the
powers set forth and conferred in its Articles of Incorporation, in the Act, in the
Texas Non -Profit Corporations Act, Article 1396- 101, et seq, Texas Revised
Civil Statutes Annotated, as amended, to the extent not in conflict with the Act, 
and in other applicable law, subject to the limitations prescribed therein and
herein and to the provisions thereof and hereof. 

b) The exercise by the Corporation of the powers of eminent domain as against a
specific piece or item of property, pursuant to Section 4 of the Act, shall be
subject to the approval of the Cities. 

ARTICLE lI

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Powers, Number and Term of Office. 

a) The property and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed and controlled by
a Board of Directors ( the " Board") and, subject to the restrictions imposed by

law, by the Articles of Incorporation, and by these Bylaws, the Board shall

exercise all of the powers of the Corporation. 



b) The Board shall consist of six ( 6) directors, each of whom shall occupy a Place
on the Board of Directors. Three of such directors shall be appointed by the
Town Council of the Town of Addison and shall occupy, respectively, Place 1, 
Place 2, and Place 3. Three of such directors shall be appointed by the City
Council of the City of Farmers Branch and shall occupy, respectively, Place 4, 
Place 5, and Place 6. 

c) The directors constituting the first Board shall be those directors named in the
Articles of Incorporation. Each member of the first Board shall serve for a term

expiring on the date set forth in the Articles of Incorporation. Thereafter, each

successor member of the Board shall be appointed and shall serve for three ( 3) 

years or until his or her successor is appointed as hereinafter provided. 

d) Any director may be removed from office by the appointing authority at will. 

Section 2. Meetings of Directors. The directors may hold their meetings at such place or places
in Addison or Farmers Branch as the Board may from time to time determine; 
provided, however, in the absence of any such determination by the Board, the

meetings shall be held at the principal office of the Corporation as specified in Article, 

V of these Bylaws. 

Section 3. Internal Ngtification of Board Meeting, . 

a) Regular meetings of the Board shall be held without the necessity of notice at

such times and places as shall be designated from time to time by the Board. 
Special Meetings of the Board shall be held whenever called by the president, 

by the secretary, by a majority of the directors, by the Mayor of Addison, by the
Mayor of Farmers Branch, or by a majority of the governing body of either of
the Cities. 

b) The secretary shall give notice to each director of each Special Meeting in person
or by mail, telephone or telegraph, at least two ( 2) hours before the meeting. 
Unless otherwise indicated in the notice thereof, any and all matters pertaining
to the purposes of the Corporation may be considered and acted upon at a
Special Meeting. At any meeting at which every director shall be present, even
though without any notice, any matter pertaining to the purpose of the
Corporation may be considered and acted upon consistent with applicable law. 

c) Whenever any notice is required to be given to the Board, said notice shall be
deemed to be sufficient if given by depositing the same in a post office box in
a sealed postpaid wrapper addressed to the person entitled thereto at his or her

post office address as it appears on the books of the Corporation, and such notice

shall be deemed to have been given on the day of such mailing. Attendance of

a director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except
where a director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the

2



transaction of any business on the grounds that the meeting is not lawfully called
or convened. Neither the business to be transacted at nor the purpose of any
Regular or Special Meeting of the Board need be specified in the notice or
waiver of notice of such meeting, unless required by the Board. A waiver of

notice in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to said notice, whether
before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving
of such notice. 

Section 4. Qpen Meetings Act. All meetings and deliberations of the Board shall be called, 

convened, held, and conducted, and notice shall be given to the public, in accordance

with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Article 6252- 17, Texas Revised Civil Statutes

Annotated, as amended. 

Section 5. Quorum. Four directors shall constitute a quorum for the conduct of the official

business of the Corporation. The act of a majority vote of the entire Board at a
meeting at which a quorum is in attendance shall constitute the act of the Board and

of the Corporation, unless the act of a greater number is required by law. 

Section 6. Conduct of Busin

a) At the meetings of the Board, matters pertaining to the business of the
corporation shall be considered in accordance with rules of procedure as from

time to time prescribed by the Board. 

b) At all meetings of the Board, the president shall preside, and in the

absence of the president, the vice president shall exercise the powers

of the president. 

c) The secretary of the Corporation shall act as secretary of all meetings
of the Board, but in the absence of the secretary, the presiding officer
may appoint any person to act as secretary of the meeting. 

Section 7. Committees of the Board. The Board may designate two or more directors to
constitute an official committee of the Board to exercise such authority of the Board
as may be specified in the resolution. It is provided, however, that all final, official

actions of the Corporation may be exercised only by the Board. Each committee so

designated shall keep regular minutes of the transactions of its meetings and shall
cause such minutes to be recorded in books kept for that purpose in the principal
office of the Corporation. 

Section 8. Compgnsation_ Qf Directors. Directors shall not receive any salary or compensation
for their services as directors. However, they shall be reimbursed for their actual
expenses incurred in the performance of their official duties hereunder; provided that

all actual expenses are approved by the Board. 

3



ARTICLE III

OFFICERS

Section 1. Titles and Term of Office. 

a) The officers of the Corporation shall be a president, a vice president, 

a secretary and a treasurer, and such other officers as the Board may
from time to time elect or appoint. One person may hold more than
one office, except that the president shall not hold the office of

secretary. Terms of office shall be one ( 1) year with the right of an

officer to be reelected. 

b) The President shall be a representative from the City of Farmers Branch until the
completion and the commencement of operation of the Eastside Sewer System; 

after which, the provisions of Subsection ( a) of this section will be in effect. 

c) All officers shall be subject to removal from office at any time by a vote of a
majority of the entire Board. 

d) A vacancy in the office of any officer shall be filled by a vote of a
majority of the remaining directors. 

Section 2. Powers and Duties of the President. The president shall be the chief executive

officer of the Corporation, and, subject to the paramount authority of the Board, the
president shall be in general charge of the properties and affairs of the Corporation, 

shall preside at all meetings of the Board, and may sign and execute all contracts, 
conveyances, franchises, bonds, deeds, assignments, mortgages, notes and other

instruments in the name of the Corporation. 

Section 3. Vice President. The vice president shall have such powers and duties as may be

prescribed by the Board and shall exercise the powers of the president during that
officer' s absence or inability to act. Any action taken by the vice president in the
performance of the duties of the president shall be conclusive evidence of the absence

or inability to act of the president at the time such action was taken. 

Section 4. Treasurer. The treasurer shall have the responsibility to see to the handling, custody, 

and security of all funds and securities of the Corporation in accordance with these
bylaws. When necessary or proper, the treasurer may endorse and sign, on behalf
of the Corporation, for collection or issuance, checks, notes and other obligations in
or drawn upon such bank or banks or depositories as shall be designated by the Board
consistent with these Bylaws. The treasurer shall see to the entry in the books of the
Corporation full and accurate accounts of all moneys received and paid out on

account of the Corporation. The treasurer shall, at the expense of the Corporation, 

4



give such bond for the faithful discharge of his duties in such form and amount as the

Board or the Commission may require. 

Section 5. Secretary. Ile secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board in books
provided for that purpose, shall give and serve all notices, may sign with the
president in the name of the Corporation, and/ or attest the signature thereto, all

contracts, conveyances, franchises, bonds, deeds, assignments, mortgages, notes and
other instruments of the Corporation, shall have charge of the corporate books, 

records, documents and instruments, except the books of account and financial

records and securities, and such other books and papers as the Board may direct, all
of which shall at all reasonable times be open to public inspection upon application

at the office of the Corporation during business hours, and shall in general perform
all duties incident to the office of secretary subject to the control of the Board. 

Section 6. The president, each vice president, and the secretary shall be named from among the
members of the Board. The treasurer and any assistant secretaries may, at the option
of the Board, be persons other than members of the Board, but they may be
employees of the City. 

Section 7. Compensation. Officers who are members of the Board shall not receive any salary
or compensation for their services, except that they shall be reimbursed for their
actual expenses incurred in the performance of their official duties hereunder, 

provided that all expenses are approved by the Board. Other officers may be
compensated as directed and approved by the Board. 

ARTICLE IV

AUDITS, EXPENDITURES, DEBTS

Section I . Annual Corporate Budget. At least 60 days prior to the commencement of each fiscal
year of the Corporation, the Board shall adopt a proposed budget of expected

revenues and proposed expenditures for the next ensuing fiscal year. The budget

shall contain such classifications and shall be in such form as may be prescribed from
time to time by the Board. The budget shall not be effective until the same has been
approved by the Cities. 

Section 2. Books. Records Audits. 

a) The Corporation shall keep and properly maintain, in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, complete books, records, accounts, and financial

statements pertaining to its corporate funds, activities, and affairs. 

5



b) At the direction of the Cities, the books, records, accounts, and

financial statements of the Corporation may be maintained for the
Corporation by the accountants, staff and personnel of one of the
Cities. In such event, the Corporation shall pay reasonable
compensation for such services. 

c) The Corporation, or the City performing such services if the option described
in subsection ( b) is selected, shall cause its books, records, accounts, and

financial statements to be audited at least once each fiscal year by an outside, 
independent, auditing and accounting firm selected by the Corporation and
approved by the Cities. Such audit shall be at the expense of the Corporation. 

Section 3. Deposit and Investment of Corporate Funds. 

a) All proceeds from the issuance of bonds, notes, or other debt

instruments (" Obligations") issued by the Corporation shall be
deposited and invested as provided in the resolution, order, indenture, 

or other documents authorizing or relating to their issuance. 

b) All other monies of the Corporation shall be deposited, secured, and/ or invested

in the manner provided for the deposit, security, and/ or investment of the public
funds of the Cities. The Board shall designate the accounts and depositories to

be created and designated for such purposes, and the methods of withdrawal of

funds therefrom for use by and for the purposes of the Corporation upon the
signature of its treasurer and such other persons as the Board shall designate. 

Section 4. Expenditures of Corporate Money. 

a) The monies of the Corporation may be expended by the Corporation
for any of its corporate purposes, subject to the following limitations: 

i) Expenditures from the proceeds of Obligations shall be identified and

described in the orders, resolutions, indentures, or other agreements

submitted to and approved by the governing bodies of each of the Cities
prior to the sale and delivery of the Obligations to the purchasers thereof; 

ii) Expenditures that may be made from a fund created with the proceeds
of Obligations may be used for the purposes of financing or otherwise
providing the facilities with reference to which the Obligations were
issued; 

6



iii) Expenditures of funds paid to the Corporation by the Cities under service
or other contracts between the Corporation and the Cities shall be used as

directed in such contracts; 

iv) All other proposed expenditures, if any, shall be made in accordance with
and shall be set forth in the annual budget required by Section 2 of this
Article. 

Section 5. Issuance of Oblitg ions. No obligations, including refunding Obligations, shall be
sold and delivered by the Corporation unless the Cities shall approve such Obligations
by action taken no more than 60 days prior to the date of sale of the Obligations. 

ARTICLE V

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 1. Principal Office. 

a) The principal office and the registered office of the Corporation shall be the

registered office of the Corporation specified in the Articles of Incorporation. 

b) The Corporation shall have and shall continually designate a registered agent at
its registered office, as required by the Act. 

Section 2. Fiscal Year. The Fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on the first day of
October and shall end on the last day of September. 

Section 3. tel. The seal of the Corporation shall be as determined by the Board. 

Section 4. Resignations. Any director or officer may resign at any time. Such resignation shall

be made in writing and shall take effect at the time specified therein, or, if no time
be specified, at the time of its receipt by the president or secretary. The acceptance

of a resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective, unless expressly so
provided in the resignation. 

Section 5. Approval or Advice and Consent of the Cities. To the extent that these bylaws refer

to any approval by the Cities or refer to advice and consent by the Cities, such

7



approval, advice and consent shall be evidenced by a certified copy of a resolution, 
order, or motion concurrently and duly adopted by the governing body of each of the
Cities. 

Section 6. Services of Staff and Officers of Cities. Subject to the paramount authority of the
Manager under the Charter of each of the Cities, the Corporation shall have the right

to utilize the services of the City Attorney, the City Secretary, and the staff and
employees of the Finance Department of each of the Cities, provided ( i) that the

Corporation shall pay reasonable compensation to the- supplying City for such
services, and ( ii) the performance of such services does not materially interfere with
the other duties of such personnel of such City. 

ARTICLE VI

EFFECTIVE DATE, AMENDMENTS

Section 1. Effective Date. These Bylaws shall become effective upon the occurrence of the

following events: 

1) the approval of these Bylaws by the Cities; and

2) the adoption of these Bylaws by the Board. 

Section 2. Amendments to Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws. The Articles of Incorporation

of the Corporation and these Bylaws may be amended only in the manner provided
in the Articles of Incorporation. 

8



   
Council Meeting 7.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Department: City Secretary 
Pillars: Excellence in Transportation Systems

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution Appointing Paul Voelker, Mayor of the City
of Richardson, as Primary Representative and Guillermo Quintanilla, Mayor
Pro-Tempore of the Town of Addison, as the Alternate to the Aggregated
Position of Representative to the Regional Transportation Council of the
North Central Texas Council of Governments.

BACKGROUND:
The Regional Transportation Council is a forty-four (44) member independent
transportation policymaking body which determines how regional transportation
funds should be spent.  The municipalities of Richardson and Addison share one
(1) representative.  With this resolution, the City Council appoints Richardson
Mayor Paul Voelker as the primary representative with Addison Mayor
Pro-Tempore Guillermo Quintanilla as the alternate representative.  Mayor
Voelker previously served as the alternate representative with Addison Council
Member Ivan Hughes serving as the primary representative. 

The City of Richardson and the Town of Addison rotate the appointments and
collaborate together to ensure the interests of both cities are represented. In
action taken at the June 8, 2021 City Council Meeting, Mayor Pro-Tempore
Quintanilla was appointed to this position replacing Council Member Ivan
Hughes who was unable to run for office due to term limits. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - 2021 RTC Appointments 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. R21-__         Page 1 of 1  

RESOLUTION NO. R21-___ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 
TEXAS, APPOINTING PAUL VOELKER AS PRIMARY 
REPRESENTATIVE AND GUILLERMO QUINTANILLA AS 
ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE TO THE REGIONAL 
TRANSPORTATION COUNCIL OF THE NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS 
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, regional transportation planning and improved mobility are goals of the City 

Council of the Town Addison; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison desires to appoint a primary representative and 
alternative representative to the Regional Transportation Council (“RTC”) of the North Central 
Texas Council of Governments, which fractional allocation membership is shared with the City 
of Richardson. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF' ADDISON, TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1. That Paul Voelker, Mayor of the City of Richardson, is hereby appointed 
Primary Representative to the RTC of the North Central Texas Council of Governments. 
 

SECTION 2. That Guillermo Quintanilla, Mayor Pro-Tempore of the Town of Addison, 
is hereby appointed as Alternate Representative to the aggregated position of representative to the 
RTC of the North Central Texas Council of Governments. 
 

SECTION 3. That above and foregoing recitals are incorporated herein and made a part 
of this Resolution for all purposes. This Resolution shall become effective immediately from and 
after its passage. 
 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, on this 22nd day of JUNE 2021. 
 
      TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 
 
             
      Joe Chow, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Irma G. Parker, City Secretary  City Attorney 
 



   
Council Meeting 8.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Department: City Secretary 
Milestones: Promote and protect the Addison Way

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution Appointing Council Liaisons for 2021-2022.

BACKGROUND:
The Council liaison appointments are typically made each year after the May
General Election. Council liaisons represent the Town by working with various
organizations that provide public services to the citizens of Addison.

Appointments were discussed during the June 8th City Council Work Session.
This resolution formalizes the appointments.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Liaison Appointments 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. R21-___         Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  R21-___ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
APPOINTING COUNCIL LIAISONS TO ORGANIZATIONS FOR 2021-2022; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, each year the City Council appoints a Council Member to represent the 
Town and work with various organizations that provide public services to the citizens of 
Addison; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at the June 8th meeting, the City Council discussed appointments and 
directed Staff to present a Resolution at the June 22nd Council Meeting to formally document 
these appointments for the 2021-2022 period. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. The findings set forth above are incorporated herein for all purposes. 
 
SECTION 2. The following Council Members are appointed to the funded organizations as 
described below. 

 

ORGANIZATION - Funded 
Mayor 
Chow 

Mayor 
Pro-Tem 

Quintanilla 

Deputy 
Mayor 

Pro-Tem 
Walden 

Council 
Member 
Braun 

Council 
Member 

Ward 

Council 
Member 
Wheeler 

Council 
Member 
Willesen 

Addison Arbor Foundation     X          

Metrocrest Chamber of Commerce           X    

Water Tower Theatre       X        

World Affairs Council of Dallas/Fort Worth         X      

 
SECTION 3. The following Council Members are appointed to serve on Town Committees 
and unfunded organizations as described below: 

 

ORGANIZATION - Unfunded 
Mayor 
Chow 

Mayor 
Pro-Tem 

Quintanilla 

Deputy 
Mayor 

Pro-Tem 
Walden 

Council 
Member 
Braun 

Council 
Member 

Ward 

Council 
Member 
Wheeler 

Council 
Member 
Willesen 

North Dallas Chamber   X            

North Texas Commission       X        
Regional Transportation Council/North Central 
Texas Council of Governments   X            

 
SECTION 4. This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and approval. 
 
DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas, 
on this 22nd day of JUNE 2021. 
 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. R21-___         Page 2 of 2 
 

      TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 
 
             
      Joe Chow, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Irma G. Parker, City Secretary  City Attorney 



   
Council Meeting 9.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Department: Parks & Recreation
Pillars: Optimize the Addison Brand
Milestones: Define and promote Addison Identity

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution Approving a
Concessionaire Agreement Between the Town of Addison and MD Circle
Cafe, LLC for Food and Beverage and/or Recreation Rental Services at
Addison Circle Park Pavilion, and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
the Agreement.

BACKGROUND:
The Parks, Recreation and Open Space (PROS) Master Plan identified park
activation as a game-changing initiative and identified Addison Circle Park and
the development that will occur North of the DART Silver Line as a
transformative project for the Addison Parks System. The PROS plan identified
that the northeast entrance to Addison Circle Park should be updated to include
a food vendor or vendors. The Economic Development Plan and Special Events
Strategic Plan also support the initiative.

In response, staff from Purchasing, Parks & Recreation, Special Events,
Economic Development and General Services worked together to issue a
Request for Proposal (RFP) to solicit Concession Services for Addison Circle
Park Kitchen and Pavilion. The RFP was issued on Bid Sync on March 24, 2021
as Bid #21-85.  Two vendors submitted proposals. Staff reviewed the proposals,
interviewed each of the respondents and scored them on the following criteria:
  

Completeness of proposal
Days / Hours of operations
Products and services
Products and services from other Addison businesses
Concession Experience
Professional appearance, quality, character attributes
Ability to meet licensing and insurance requirements
Satisfactory concession fee to be paid to the Town

Representatives from Parks & Recreation, Special Events and General Services
scored the proposals and identified Kelcher Entertainment Group, doing
business as MD Circle Cafe, LLC as the most qualified vendor to provide



concession services. Kelcher has experience working with municipalities to
provide concession services, operates an Addison business, and has worked
with staff during Special Events. Staff will give an overview of the agreement
between MD Circle Cafe, LLC and the Town.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Concessionaire Agreement 
Presentation - Concessionaire 
Vendor Proposal 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 1 of 24 

 

RESOLUTION NO.    
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

APPROVING A CONCESSIONAIRE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF 

ADDISON AND MD CIRCLE CAFE, LLC, FOR FOOD AND BEVERAGE AND/OR 

RECREATION RENTAL SERVICES AT ADDISON CIRCLE PARK PAVILION, 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT, AND 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1. The Concessionaire Agreement between the Town of Addison and MD 

Circle Cafe, LLC, for food and beverage and/or recreation rental services at Addison Circle 

Park Pavilion, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. 

The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the agreement. 

 

SECTION 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 
 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 

Texas, on this the 22nd day of JUNE 2021. 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 

 

 
 

Joe Chow, Mayor 

 
 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

 

Irma Parker, City Secretary                            City Attorney 
 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 
 

 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 3 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 4 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 5 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 6 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 7 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 8 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 9 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 10 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 11 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 12 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 13 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 14 of 24 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 15 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 16 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 17 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 18 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 19 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 20 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 21 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 22 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 23 of 24 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.           Page 24 of 24 

 

 
 



Addison Circle Park 
Kitchen & Pavilion

Concession Services

1



Proposal Overview

2

The Concept
Kelcher Entertainment Group, doing business as MD 
Circle Cafe, LLC, proposes branding the Kitchen & 
Pavilion at Addison Circle Park as the Circle Cafe.  

Hours of Operation*
Monday – Friday 4 pm - 9 pm
Saturday – Sunday 10am - 9 pm
*Vendor will work with staff to expand weekday hours 
to respond to demand.

Payment Methods
Vendor will provide point of sale services and tills to 
handle credit and cash payments.

Revenue Split
Concession Revenue 15% to the Town
Alcohol Revenue 30% to the Town
Rental Revenue 30% to the Town



Proposal Overview

The Menu
The menu is based on successful sales at other similar 
concessions which Kelcher Entertainment Group 
operates and is viewed as a base to build from.  The 
vendor will monitor and adapt the menu to fit the 
needs of Addison Park Users.  For example, once 
demand grows early morning hours may be offered 
and coffee would be added to the menu.  

Rentals
Vendor will also rent the pavilion for private parties 
and work with the Parks Department to offer games 
that would compliment park use.

Special Events
The vendor understands that the pavilion will be used 
by the Town during special events.

3



Equipment
Concessionaire will utilize existing equipment that is located 
in the kitchen and will supplement their needs by 
purchasing equipment or utilizing equipment they have in 
stock.

Staffing
Because of their structure Kelcher Entertainment Group has 
the ability to deploy trained staff when and where 
necessary.

Permitting & Other Requirements
Vendor has experience meeting RFP requirements such as
Certificate of Occupancy
Proof of Insurance
Health Permit
Sign Permit 
Special Use Permit
TABC

4



Next Steps

• City Council action on the Agreement June 22, 2021

• Permitting begins June 22, 2021

• Mobilization of equipment will begin by July 20, 2021

• Concession Services offered to Park Users July 27, 2021

5







































   
Council Meeting 10.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Department: Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Granting a
Meritorious Exception to Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances for the
Addison Airport Customs and Border Protection Facility, Located at 4545
Jimmy Doolittle Drive, in Order to Exceed the Total Effective Area and the
Maximum Allowable Logo Height for Attached Signs. Case MR2021-006.

BACKGROUND:
Construction for the new U.S. Customs and Border Protection Facility at the
Addison Airport is nearing completion.  A remaining task is the installation of site
and building identification signage. To complete this process, Addison Airport
staff is requesting a Meritorious Exception to the Town’s sign ordinance to install
wall signage reflecting occupancy by Addison Airport and US Customs and
Border Protection staff.
 
With this project, Addison Airport staff submitted sign permit applications for four
wall signs, which includes two Addison Airport signs and two U.S. Customs and
Border Protection signs. One of each of these signs will be located on the
western building façade (facing the airfield) and the eastern building façade
(facing the Addison Airport Toll Tunnel).
 
For each attached wall sign, text and logos are limited to 27 inches in height, with
up to 50 percent of the text and logos comprising each sign permitted to exceed
this maximum height by 25 percent (allowing a maximum letter and logo height
of 33.75 inches). All lettering in each of the four proposed wall signs comply with
this requirement. For the two Addison Airport wall signs, the blue circle that
comprises the background of the Town logo, exceeds this requirement by 50.25
inches for the wall sign on the eastern façade, and 26.25 inches for the wall sign
on the western façade.
 
Additionally, the Town’s sign ordinance limits the total effective sign area that can
be accommodated on a building. The Town’s sign ordinance defines effective
area as the area enclosed by drawing a rectangle of horizontal and vertical lines
which fully contain all extremities of the sign drawn to scale, including
architectural design elements such as decorative bordering, but exclusive of the
sign supports. The measurements are to be calculated from the viewpoint which
gives the largest rectangle of that kind as the viewpoint is rotated horizontally



around the sign.
 
For this building with multiple wall signs, the maximum permitted effective area is
200 square feet, and the cumulative effective area for the four attached wall
signs is 220 square feet. The proposed signage for this building exceeds the
maximum effective area due to the placement of the Town logo on two of the
signs.
 
The applicant is pursuing a Meritorious Exception to the sign ordinance in
accordance with the below code provision:
 
Town of Addison Code of Ordinances, Chapter 62 (Signs)
Section 62-33. – Meritorious exceptions.
(d)(3) The council may consider appeals on the basis that such regulations
and/or standards will, by reason of exceptional circumstances or surroundings,
constitute a practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship  or on the basis that the
proposed improvement although falling under the definition of a "sign,"
constitutes art that makes a positive contribution to the visual environment.
 
For this proposal, staff believes the hardship criteria of the Meritorious Exception
requirements is met, based on the following considerations: 

The signs for this facility are setback over 150 feet from surrounding
roadways and reducing the scale of the Town logo would result in lettering
that would be very difficult to see from Jimmy Doolittle Drive. On the airfield
side of the project, it is equally important to have an appropriately sized sign
to help visitors become oriented to their surroundings upon arrival. From an
aesthetic standpoint, a much smaller sign would be poorly scaled to this
building.

1.

In addition to Addison Airport staff, this building is also occupied by a federal
agency, US Customs and Border Protection, which requires its own
dedication signage in accordance with federal standards. If this agency did
not require signage, the proposed signs for this building would comply with
the maximum effective area requirement. 

2.

For private and public properties served by the Airport, the Town has not
historically applied the Town’s sign ordinance to airfield facing signs that are not
visible from the public right-of-way. Staff supports continuation of this approach;
however, it would be best if this practice and other airport specific signage
considerations were to be formalized via adoption of a Special Sign District for
Addison Airport.
 
Staff recommends approval of this Meritorious Exception request and will begin
drafting an Addison Airport Special Sign District as part of the UDC development
process.



RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Ordinance - Meritorious Exception for the US Customs and Border Protection
Facility 
Presentation - Meritorious Exception for the Addison Airport US Customs and
Border Patrol Facility 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 1 of 7 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, GRANTING A 

MERITORIOUS EXCEPTION TO CHAPTER 62 OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES FOR THE ADDISON AIRPORT CUSTOMS AND BORDER 

PROTECTION FACILITY, LOCATED AT 4545 JIMMY DOOLITTLE DRIVE, TO 

EXCEED THE TOTAL EFFECTIVE AREA AND THE MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 

LOGO HEIGHT FOR ATTACHED SIGNS; PROVIDING A PENALTY NOT TO 

EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($500.00) FOR EACH 

OFFENSE AND A SEPARATE OFFENSE SHALL BE DEEMED COMMITTED 

EACH DAY DURING OR ON WHICH A VIOLATION OCCURS OR CONTINUES; 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances regulates signage in the Town of 

Addison; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Section 62-33 permits the City Council to approve exceptions to the 

provisions of Chapter 62 in cases that have obvious merit in not only being appropriate to the 

particular site or location, but also in making a positive contribution to the visual environment; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the grant of the meritorious exception 

contained herein is in the best interest of the public and promotes the visual environment of the 

Town. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

 SECTION 1.  The recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and 

correct and incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

 

 SECTION 2.  A meritorious exception to Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances is hereby 

granted to authorize signage that exceeds the total effective area and the maximum allowable logo 

height for attached signs as depicted in Exhibit A, for the Addison Airport Customs and Border 

Protection Facility, located at 4545 Jimmy Doolittle Drive. No other additional signage is 

permitted unless it complies with Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances.     

 

 SECTION 3.  Any person, firm, corporation, or other business entity violating any of the 

provisions or terms of this Ordinance shall, in accordance with Section 62-35 of the Town of 

Addison Code of Ordinance (Violations), be fined, upon conviction, in an amount of not more than 

Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($500.00), and a separate offense shall be deemed committed 

each day during or on which a violation occurs or continues. 

 

 SECTION 4.  This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and 

approval and after publication as may be required by law or by the City Charter or ordinance. 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 2 of 7 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas, on this the 

22ND day of JUNE 2021. 
 

 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 

 

 

             
Joe Chow, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

              
Irma Parker, City Secretary City Attorney



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 3 of 7 

  



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 4 of 7 

 



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 5 of 7 

 



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 6 of 7 

 



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 7 of 7 

 



Addison Airport
US Customs Building
Meritorious Exception
(MR2021-006)

1



Case MR2021-0006 US Customs Building

LOCATION:
4545 Jimmy Doolittle Drive.

REQUEST:
Approval of a Meritorious Exception for attached 
signs at the Addison Airport US Customs and 
Border Protection Facility.

ACTION REQUIRED:
Discuss, consider, and take action on the 
appropriateness of the proposed sign code 
meritorious exception request.

2



3

Case MR2021-0006 US Customs Building

Attached 
Sign Locations



SIGN CODE COMPLIANCE ISSUES:

• Maximum Logo Height

• Two signs with Addison logos (5 ft 
and 7 ft in height)

• Maximum permitted logo height is
33.75 inches

• Sign Effective Area

• Effective area inclusive of four 
attached signs is 220 square feet

• Maximum permitted effective area 
is 200 square feet 

4

Case MR2021-0006 US Customs Building



5

Case MR2021-0006 US Customs Building

Eastern Facade



6

Case MR2021-0006 US Customs Building

Western Facade



7

Case MR2021-0006 US Customs Building

Eastern Facade



8

Case MR2021-0006 US Customs Building

Western Facade



MERITORIOUS EXCEPTION CRITERIA:

• The council may consider appeals on the basis that 
such regulations and/or standards will, by reason of 
exceptional circumstances or surroundings, constitute 
a practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship or on 
the basis that the proposed improvement although 
falling under the definition of a "sign," constitutes art 
that makes a positive contribution to the visual 
environment.

Proposal meets hardship criteria

• Lettering would be difficult to see if the logo were to 
comply with the code

• If federal agency signage was not required, signs would 
comply with the maximum effective area

9

Case MR2021-0006 US Customs Building



RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of the request.

Additional Action:
• Begin exploring the concept of a Special Sign District 

for Addison Airport as part of the UDC process

• Formalize past administrative review practices and other airport-
specific design considerations

10

Case MR2021-0006 US Customs Building



   
Council Meeting 11.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Department: Development Services
Pillars: Optimize the Addison Brand
Milestones: Promote Silver Line Development

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution Approving an
Interlocal Agreement Between the Town of Addison and Dallas Area Rapid
Transit (DART), for the Lease of Property Owned by DART at the Addison
Transit Center for Inclusion in a Transit-Oriented Development to be
Managed by the Town; Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the
Agreement and Other Documents Including the Lease.

BACKGROUND:
The Interlocal Agreement (ILA) sets forth the terms and conditions for the
inclusion of 5.5+- acres of land owned by DART along with properties owned by
the Town to create a large transit-oriented development surrounding the future
Silver Line rail station.  DART’s property holdings include the existing transit
center and the adjacent office building (the “Baumann Building”). The Town owns
approximately 13+- acres surrounding the transit center and issued a RFP at the
end of April to solicit a Master Developer for these properties.  The RFP does not
include DART’s property; the selected master developer will have the option to
add it to the overall development based on the terms of the ILA.

The basic provisions of the ILA are:

Term 
DART enters into a Master Lease Agreement with the Town for a ground
lease for an initial term of 49 years, with two 25-year extension options.
DART may terminate the Master Lease Agreement if no construction has
commenced on the DART property within 60 months of its approval. The
lease may also be terminated on the Baumann Building property if
construction has not commenced within 10 years. 
The Town may terminate the Master Lease Agreement if no sublease or
development agreement with a Master Developer has been approved within
48 months after the effective date of the Master Lease Agreement.

Base Rent 
The ILA provides a Pre-Development Period of up to 60 months for the
Town to select a Master Developer, who in turn must acquire financing and



complete the surveying/zoning/planning/platting and permitting process.
DART receives no base rent during the Pre-Development Period.  Rent will
commence when the Pre-Development Period ends, or the Town issues a
Certificate of Occupancy for the first building on the DART property, or when
DART’s ability to use the transit facilities is adversely impacted, whichever
occurs first. DART will continue to collect all rent and other revenue from
lease of the Baumann Building until Base Rent becomes payable. 

Annual base rent is calculated as follows: 
For the first 5 years of the lease, the base rent for DART’s land is
determined by an “as developed” appraisal conducted immediately after
selection of the Master Developer, based on the proposed development
plan, but also taking into consideration the impact of DART’s operational
and infrastructure requirements.   The appraised value of DART’s land
will be multiplied by 4% to establish the base rent.
Appraisals will be conducted by one appraiser selected by the Town and
DART and another chosen by the Master Developer.  If the two
appraisals are within 5% of the same value, the average will be used to
calculate the base rent.  If the difference in the two appraisals differs
more than 5%, the two appraisers shall jointly select a third appraiser to
make that determination. 
A reappraisal shall be conducted initially after 5 years, and then every
10 years to reset the annual base rent.  The annual base rent shall be
adjusted by not less than 2% per year but not more than 3% per year
since the previous adjustment.
In addition, if the improvements actually constructed on the DART
property deviate significantly from the original development plan, DART
or Addison may require an adjustment to the annual base rent.  The
appraisal for this adjustment would be based on the actual
improvements on DART’s property. 

  
Excess Rent – Although unlikely, if the Town receives annual rent from the
Master Developer for DART’s property that exceeds the rent payable to
DART, the excess rent is shared equally between the Town and DART.
Property tax, sales tax and other tax receipts are not considered base rent,
nor is any rent paid by the Master Developer which is rebated, credited or
refunded by the Town for reimbursement of development costs.   

Unsubordinated Ground Lease – the Master Lease Agreement will be
unsubordinated, but with appropriate protections for subtenants and lenders.
 
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions – The Town and DART will enter into a
set of CCRs that prohibits noxious uses on DART’s property but promotes the
development of a high density, mixed-use transit-oriented development.
Development and uses shall comply with DART’s adopted Transit Oriented



Development Guidelines.  Mini-warehouses and a stand-alone parking garage
that does not support a hotel, office or other use are prohibited on both DART’s
and the Town’s properties.
 
Capital and Operational Expenditures 

Project Capital and Operational Expenditures – The Master Developer will
be responsible for all capital expenditures for infrastructure and facility
improvements and replacements, and for property management.  DART will
remain responsible for capital expenditures related to the rail line and
platform, ticket kiosks, information boards and associated infrastructure as
well as operating expenses related to transit operations.
DART Operational and Infrastructure Requirements – DART’s ongoing bus
and rail operations must be accommodated and continued as part of the
development, in accordance with the requirements attached as Exhibit “C”
to the ILA.

 
Master Developer Selection – The Town has exclusive authority to solicit
proposals from developers, to select the Master Developer and enter into a
sublease for DART’s property and associated development agreements.  The
Town has 24 months to complete this process, with one 12-month extension if
required to complete the negotiations. DART will review correspondence and
documents related to the RFP, the development proposals, development
agreements and sublease documents. 
 
FTA Compliance – The lease and use of DART’s property is subject to
compliance with Federal Transit Administration requirements. 
 
Next Steps:
 
The ILA is scheduled for consideration by the DART Board on June 22, 2021.
With approval by both the Town and DART and after selection of the Master
Developer, negotiations will commence on the Master Lease Agreement for
DART’s property. Responses to the RFP are due by July 15th, and the Town's
Selection Committee will begin the process of selecting the 2-3 developers to
proceed to the second, more detailed phase of the RFP process.

The attached Resolution is complete with the exception of Exhibit A .  Exhibit A
will be discussed in the Executive Session being held earlier in the meeting. 
Copies of Exhibit A will be available when this item is being discussed.  

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval subject to the DART Board's approval of
the Interlocal Agreement.



Attachments
Resolution - DART Silver Line Station Transit Oriented Development Interlocal
Agreement 



RESOLUTION NO. R21-_____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TEXAS APPROVING AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN 

AND DALLAS AREA RAPID TRANSIT (DART), FOR THE LEASE OF 

PROPERTY OWNED BY DART AT THE ADDISON TRANSIT CENTER FOR 

INCLUSION IN A TRANSIT-ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT TO BE MANAGED 

BY THE TOWN; AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 

AGREEMENT AND OTHER DOCUMENTS INCLUDING THE LEASE; AND 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TEXAS: 

SECTION 1. The Interlocal Agreement between the Town of Addison and Dallas Area 

Rapid Transit (DART), a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, for inclusion 

of DART’s Addison Transit Center property, through a Master Development Agreement, in a 

transit-oriented development to be managed by the Town, is hereby approved. The City Manager 

is hereby authorized to execute the agreement, to take all necessary steps and to execute additional 

documents, including the lease between DART and the Town, in accordance with the Interlocal 

Agreement.  

SECTION 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.  

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 

Texas, on this the 22nd day of June, 2021.  

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 

__________________________________ 

Joe Chow, Mayor  

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

 

_________________________  __________________________________ 

Irma Parker, City Secretary    Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 



   
Council Meeting 12.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Department: City Manager
Milestones: Promote and protect the Addison Way

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on Providing Additional Funding
for Metrocrest Services in Response to the COVID-19 Pandemic.

BACKGROUND:
The Town supports Metrocrest Services (Metrocrest) through the annual
Non-Profit Organization (NPO) funding process ($66,120 in Fiscal Year 2021). 
These funds go toward a variety of programs for Addison residents such as
education, job training, and senior related services. 

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Town provided additional funds to
Metrocrest for a Residents Assistance Program (RAP) that provides rent and
food assistance to qualifying Addison residents.  In 2020, Council approved
CARES Act funding to Metrocrest for the RAP in an amount up to $285,000 to be
spent by December 31, 2020 (as originally required by the CARES Act).  Due to
eligibility requirements on the funding, Metrocrest spent $180,934 of the award. 
In January 2021, Council designated $64,689 to continue the RAP.  It was
estimated that this funding would last for only a portion of 2021, and Metrocrest
would return to Council to request additional funding as needed.  Through May
2021, Metrocrest has expended $52,027 of the 2021 RAP allocation leaving a
balance of $12,662.  Metrocrest anticipates the remaining balance to be
expended on or before July 15, 2021. 

While there is encouraging news related to vaccines, Metrocrest expects the
need for rent and food assistance for Addison residents to remain high
throughout calendar 2021.  Therefore, Metrocrest is requesting $72,000 in
funding (separate from and in addition to the annual Non-Profit Funding
request) to assist with costs associated with providing food and rent assistance
for the remainder of 2021.  

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff requests direction from Council.  

Attachments
Metrocrest Services Request Letter 





 
 

Serving Carrollton, Farmers Branch, Addison, Coppell, and city of Dallas in Denton County 

 

13801 Hutton Drive, Suite 150 • Farmers Branch, TX  75234 • (972) 446-2100 • FAX (214) 694-2171  www.metrocrestservices.org 
 

June 8, 2021 
 
The Honorable Mayor Joe Chow and Council 
Town of Addison 
Attention: Wes Pierson, City Manager 
P.O. Box 9010 

Addison, TX 75001-9010 

 
Dear Mayor Chow and Council, 
 
Thank you so much for the generous support since the beginning of the pandemic. In August 2020 Town Council 
approved CARES Reimbursable Funding to Metrocrest Services to meet the needs of pandemic-stricken Addison 
residents in the amount of $285,000 to be spent by 12/31/20. Metrocrest spent $180,934 of the award. In January 2021 
City Council reallocated remaining CARES funds in the amount of $64,689 to be utilized in Calendar 2021. Through May 
2021 Metrocrest has exhausted $52,027 leaving $12,662 to be spent. Metrocrest anticipates the balance being utilized 
no later than July 15, 2021.  
 
All funds in both allocations have been utilized only for rent assistance, food support, and a 10% Admin fee. Below is a 
summary of funds spent from March 2020 through May 2021: 
 
Total Spent 3/1/20-5/31/21: $232,962 
 
Families Served with Rent: 115 
Individuals Served with Rent: 272  
# of months of Rental Support:209 
Total Spent on Rental Support: $199,702 
# of Food Pantry Visits: 2,071 
 
Metrocrest expects the need for rent and food to remain high throughout calendar 2021. While there is encouraging 
news related to vaccines, the families who experienced the greatest economic distress are far from near the end of this 
ordeal. The inevitability of a “tsunami of evictions” adds another level to financial complexity.   
 
As Metrocrest enters the summer with Addison funds to soon be exhausted there will be uncertainty regarding where 
the needed funds will be sourced to support pandemic impacted Addison families through calendar 2021. To allow us to 
continue to “say yes” as families seek rental assistance and request food, we respectfully request that the Town of 
Addison provide funding in the amount of $72,000. Additional funds for other services such as Employment Services will 
be sourced through individual donations, foundation grants, and other federal funding.  
 
Our Board, Staff, and those we serve appreciate your willingness to consider our proposal. Let us know what additional 
information we can provide. 
 
Sincerely,  

 
Tracy Eubanks, CEO 

http://www.metrocrestservices.org/

	Agenda
	AI_3968_Non-Profit Organizations Presentations for FY22 Funding
	AI_3947_Present and Discuss the Proposed 2021 General Obligation Bonds and 2021 Taxable Refunding Bonds 
	    Presentation - 2021 General Obligation Bonds and Refunding
	Capital Improvement Funding Plan and 2021 Debt Issuance and Refunding
	Proposed 2021 General Obligation Bonds
	2021 GO Bonds Tax Rate Impact
	Tax Rate Impact from Bond Committee in 2019
	Tax Rate Impact Current Estimate
	2021 Refunding Opportunities
	2021 Refunding Analysis	
	Timeline			
	Questions

	AI_3989_Finance Committee Discussion
	    Finance Committee History and By-Laws
	AI_3974_Minutes - May 25, 2021
	    Minutes - May 25, 2021
	EXECUTIVE SESSION
	REGULAR MEETING

	AI_3978_Minutes - June 8, 2021
	    Minutes - June 8, 2021
	AI_3982_Resolution - Appointment to North Dallas County Water Supply Corporation
	    Resolution - 2021 Appointments
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

	    Resolution - 2020 Appointments
	    Resolution 1991 - Establishment
	AI_3983_Resolution - Appointment to RTC
	    Resolution - 2021 RTC Appointments
	RESOLUTION NO. R21-___
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF' ADDISON, TEXAS:

	AI_3957_Council Liaison Appointments
	    Resolution - Liaison Appointments
	AI_3926_Addison Circle Park Concession Vendor
	    Resolution - Concessionaire Agreement
	    Presentation - Concessionaire
	    Vendor Proposal
	AI_3973_Case MR2021-006 US Customs Building Meritorious Exception
	    Ordinance - Meritorious Exception for the US Customs and Border Protection Facility
	    Presentation - Meritorious Exception for the Addison Airport US Customs and Border Patrol Facility
	AI_3984_Interlocal Agreement For The Future Ground Lease Of DART Properties In The Vicinity Of The Addison Circle Silver Line Station
	    Resolution - DART Silver Line Station Transit Oriented Development Interlocal Agreement
	AI_3976_Metrocrest Request - COVID 2021
	    Metrocrest Services Request Letter

